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Thursday, August 28, 2014

SENIOR JENKINS, after having been duly

sworn, testified as follows:

THE COURT: All right, Solicitor. You want to call
the next case. |

MS. YOUNG: Yes. Thank you, Your Honor. May it
please the Court. This is the State vs. Senior Jenkins.
He is pleading to a lesser included of distribution
cocaine base second offense, no rgcommendatibn.

THE COURT: All right. Ms. Taylor, you represent
Senior Jenkins?

MS. TAYLOR: I do.

THE COURT: Have you had an opportunity to explain
this charge to him, his constitutional rights related to
the charge, maximum punishment he could receive?

MS. TAYLOR: I have.

THE COURT: And do you believe he has understood
your explanation?

MS. TAYLOR: I believe that he does.

THE COURT: Okay. And how does he wish to plead to
distribution of cocaine base which is actually a reduced
charge from a third to a second?"

MS. TAYLOR: Guilty.

THE COURT: And do you agree with his decision?

MS. TAYLOR: I do.
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THE COURT: And do you believe that if he were to
go to trial on the charge the strong likelihood would be
he would be found guilty?

MS. TAYLOR: I do.

THE COURT: Mr. Jenkins, I'm going toc ask you some
questions. Pay very close attention to the questions
that I ask you and when you respond speak up loud and
clear so we can hear you. Okay?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: All right. You are Senior Jenkins?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir, I am.

THE COURT: How old are you?

THE DEFENDANT: I'll be 40, sir. I'm 39.

THE COURT: You're 39 now?

THE DEFENDANT: ' Yes, sir.

THE COURT: How far did you go in school?

THE DEFENDANT: Three years of college and United
States Navy, sir.

THE COURT: Okay. What kind of work do you do?

THE DEFENDANT: I'm an electrician, sir, by trade.

THE COURT: All right. 1I've been informed that you
were originally indicted with distribution of cocaine
base third but the State is allowing you to plead guilty
to distribution of cocaine base second offense; is that

correct?
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THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Are you pleading guilty to this offense
because in fact you are guilty?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Has anyone forced you, coerced .you,
promised you anything, done anything whatsoever to get
you to plead guilty today against your will?

THE DEFENDANT: No, sir.

THE COURT: Are you pleading guilty today freely,
voluntarily and intelligently?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Mr. Jenkins, within the last 24 hours
have you consumed any substance, alcohol, drugs,
medication that would affect your ability to understand
these proceedings and make decisions in this case? -

THE DEFENDANT: No, sir.

THE COURT: Do you suffer from any problem or
condition, whether it's physical, mental or emotiocnal
that would affect your ability to understand these
proceedings and make decisions in this'case?

THE DEFENDANT: No, sir. Everything is fine.

THE COURT: 'Okay. All right. Solicitor, you want
to tell me about it, please, ma'am.

MS. YOUNG: Yes. Thank you, Your Honor. May it

please the Court. This occurred on December 1lst, 2012.
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The defendant met with a City of Charleston Police
Department undercover officer in the area of Rutlédge
Avenue and Congress Street. The undercover officer
exchanged a sum of prerecorded U. S. Currency for
approximately .2 grams of a white rock-like substance
that field tested presumptive for cocaine base. The
entire transaction was recorded.

And, Your Honor, his prior record is a 1992
possession of liquor by a minor; 2000 DUS; 2001 habitual
traffic offender, possession of cocaine, criminal
domestic violence of a high and aggravated nature; 2002
entering premises after warning; 2004 criminal domestic
violence; 2006 possession of a controlled substance; 2010
trespassing, driving under suspension, two counts of
distribution of cocaine base, and two counts of
distribution of cocaine base within the proximity of a
school. He received 10 years suspended to four years and
two years probation on that charge, Your Honor. The
State is not making a recommendation. It's seeking
active time.

THE COURT: Okay. All right. Thank you very much.

Mr. Jenkins, concerning the faéts behind this
charge you are pleading guilty to is that a correct
statement of the facts?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.
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THE COURT: Okay. Now, and I think you're already
aware of that because it comes into play here but any
time you get a drug conviction on your record and then
you get another drug conviction later on in the future
this drug conviction can enhance the penalty for that
future drug conviction; do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Understanding that is it still your
desire to plead guilty?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Sir?

'THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Okay. You understand what the penalty
range for this offense is?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

" THE COURT: Okay. What is it?

THE DEFENDANT: It can carry up to five up to 30
years.

THE COURT: Five to 30. Okay?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes.

THE COURT: Understanding that you still want to
plead guilty?

"THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Okay. Now, Mr. Jenkins, you understand

that when you plead guilty you give up certain
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constitutional rights; do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: I'll go through those with you. You
have the constitutional right to a trial by‘jury. Do you
know what a jury trial is?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Do you want to give up that right to a
jury trial?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: You have the right for your attorney to
confront and cross-examine witnesses on your behalf,
witnesses that the State has against you. Do you want to
give up that right?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: You have the constitutional right to
have your attorney on your behalf put up legal defenses,
legal challenges, any and all evidence or witnesses that
the State may have against you. Do you want to give up
that right?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: You have the constitutional right to
require the State to meet its burden of proof for proving
each and every element of this charge beyond a reasonable
doubt, and do you want to give up that right?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.
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THE COURT: You have the constitutional right to
remain silent. No one including myself can force you at
any time to say anything whatsocever. Do you want to give
up that right?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Okay. Now, Ms. Taylor has been your
attorney in this case?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Are you satisfied with her services?

THE DEFENDANT: Fine by me, sir. Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Okay. Has she done everything you've
asked her to do or expected that she would do.

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Have you had full and complete
opportunity to review the discovery file in this case,
the discovery file being all the evidence and documents
that the State has provided to your attorney?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Do you need any more time to sit down
and discuss this case with your attorney?

THE DEFENDANT: No, sir.

THE CCURT: Sir?

THE DEFENDANT: No, sir.

THE COURT: Okay. Do you have any complaints

against your attorney, any complaints against any of the
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solicitors involved in this case, any complaints against

C
-any law enforcement personnel involved in this case?

THE DEFENDANT: No, sir.

THE COURT: Okay. Mr. Jenkins, you understand that
if you have a legal bases to challenge this guilty plea
that you are making this afternoon that you only have 10
days to file a notice of intent to appeal wifh a higher
court; do you understand that, sir?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Have you understood all of the Court's
questions?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Have all your answers and responses
been truthful and accurate?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Okay. Thank you very much. Let the
record reflect that there is a factual basis for the
plea. The plea has been made freely, voluntarily and
intelligently by Mr. Jenkins and he has done soO with able
assistance of counsel whose services he has expressed
complete satisfaction with.

Ms. Taylor, I'll be glad to hear from you.

MS. TAYLOR: Thank you, Judge. As he indicated he
graduated from Burke High School in the city in 1993. He

spent three years at College of Charleston. I believe he
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was pursuing music at that point. He entered the Navy in
1994, was released from them two years later with anxiety
posttraumatic stress diagnosis,

Starting in that year he began using cocaine and
has used cocaine consistently since that time. I was
able to get his V. A. records that indicate that he had
-~ at different times he has problems that appear to be
bipolar. He's very depressive.,

His first mental health involvement was at the age
of 12 when he was committed into I. 0. P., which is the
Institute of Psychiatry, for a two week evaluation
because of A. D. H. D., acting out, impulsivity and
depression, sleep issues.

Following his release from the Navy he has been
intermittently involved with the V. A. and most of the

records indicate that the primary problem was his

substance abuse which they related to self medication or

the anxiety, the P. T. 5. D. problems that he had been
having, the impulsivity.

Obviocusly, his record is not a good one. A lot of
those actions relate around all of that. He had not had
as of -- he had two lawyers prior to me and he came to
sée me I think in spring and I told him that I would help
him and took his case and asked him to go back to the

V. A. and start again, just begin intermittently with

11
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them. So he went back and I have a report from them in
May that sort ofbreiterates everything that I just said.
If you'd like to see I'll be happy to hand them up.

THE COURT: You can hand to me whate&er you would
like for me to consider.

MS. TAYLOR: I will hand you this one because it
sort of capsulizes.

THE COURT: Thank you.

MS. TAYLOR: I'll let you look that over while I'm
sort of going through highlighting. Coming up today he's
on two medications. He takes Zoloft and Trazodone, I
believe it is. Those are obviodsly for depression and
sleep issues as well.

Okay if I talk to you while you read or do you want
me to know wait?

THE COURT: Give me just a moment.

(PAUSE.)

THE COURT: Ms. Taylor, let me just ask one
guestion about this report.

MS. TAYLOR: Certaiﬁly.

THE COURT: It states in the first paragraph he has
a current charge for possession of crack cocaine and it
reports that the judge has ordered him to seek treatment.
What judge wquld that have been?

MS. TAYLOR: That would be his confusion, Judge,
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they ordered him, unless he may have been referring to he
had driving under suspension charges and that actually
might be Judge Tom Morrison Who was the municipal judge,
and when we appeared in there he had gone ‘through a
substance unit. I'm sorry. I forget about that
instance.

THE COURT: Okay. All right. I have reviewed this
report. You may continue.

‘MS. TAYIOR: Okay. There have been socme
considerations that he may be boarder line schizophrenic

or bipolar but what the V. A. tells me is that until his

‘cocaine .use is under control they can't really

distinguish whether these symptoms are because of the use
of cocaine for the last 20 some years, which affects the
activities of the mind, or whether he does have an
underlying bipolar designation.

What I had hoped to be able to do because despite
his bad history and record he'd also been very erratic
with employment and with his personal life.

He is married and this is his wife who is
fortunately avstable individual. This is an aunt of his
beside him. They recently -- it seems to be a trend with
my clients. His mother died recently and left a home to
him, which his siblings are determined to try and help

him. He's got a brother and sister here who have helped

13
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him over time and kind of said, you know, Senior, you are
not getting it together. We are done.

But when she passed away the house was empty. They
didn't need it so they made a deal with him and said you
and your wife take this home and as long as you stay
straight we will let you live here, you'll have a place
to be. He also has gotten employment with this company
that he's been working with -- how long?

THE DEFENDANT: Almost three years.

MS. TAYLOR: Permanently more recently than that
but has worked sporadically part-time and now he's got an
actual full-time job with them. I had hoped to get him
into the mental health court and unfortunately Ms. Young
does not agree with me that that would be an appropriate
placement so he can't do that.

He would otherwise qualify for V. A. Treatment, and
I spoke with them. Théy have an in-house residential
drug treatment program whefe they actually live in one of
their facilities until you go through intensive treatment
and then you have follow up. He is eligible for that.

The woman who handles that, Meredith Miller, says
that he would be a prime candidate for that. He would
obviously have to agree to live in the house, it's eight
to 10 weeks, I think, is the initial part, and then after

that you can follow up. So that's basically where we
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are.

I know that he wants to talk to you, Your Honor,
and I think that his wife would like to speak with you
about where he is but essentially that's where we are.

As far as the criminal offense, yes, he has done many bad
things in his life, fortunately nothing terribly
horrendous.

This particular transaction was a .2 grams of —-— I
can't remember now 1f it was crack or cocaine, but that
was purchased from him by an undercover officer that he
thought was somebody that he knew that rode up on a
bicycle and said, Hey, can you give me some, and he did.
It was a very minor transaction. No -- fortunately no
weapons, no violence involved in these drug things. The
possession offenses that are being dismissed pursuant to
this were simply that, minor amounts of --

THE COURT: Let me just ask you one guestion,

Ms. Taylor. Concerning these mental health issues,
potential mental health issues, has that ever created any
concern in your mind as his attorney concerning
competency or anything like that or did it ever rise to
the level that you felt like possibly an evaluation was
necessary?

MS. TAYLOR: It has not, Your Honor, and I did have

him evaluated at the V. A. but there's never been an

15
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issue about competency.
THE COURT: Okay.
MS. TAYLOR: And when we talk with him he will-
sometimes -- especially when he gets upset because he has

the anxiety issues, he will get very impulsive when he
talks but he's very smart and he understands everything.
I have no doubt in my mind that he is competent.

THE COURT: Okay. All right. Thank you very much,
and you want me to hear from the wife?

MS. TAYLOR: I would like you to hear from his
wife.

THE COURT: Okay. Ma'am, you'll need to be sworn
in.

Madam clerk.

ALICIA N. MANGUM-JENKINS, after having been

duly sworn, testified as follows:

THE CLERK: Please state your full name for the
record, spelling your last.

THE DEFENDANT'S WIFE: Alicia Nicole
Mangum-Jenkins. M-a-n-g-u-m-J-e-n-k-i-n-s.

THE COURT: Okay. Ms. Jenkins, what would you like
to tell me, ma'am?

THE DEFENDANT'S WIFE: Basically, up until now we
were on the fast track with getting him some help. When

his mom was living -- she passed away. She caught a
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stroke in 2012 -- 2011, passed away in 2012, but before
then we had a lot of time to talk and catch up on his
childhood, and I noticed some things that were getting
worse with his behavior and that's when she shared with
me that since childhood he was diagnosed with A. D. H. D.
and bipolar disorder, which he kind of held back and
didn't really go into too much detail with.

During that time she told me this information he
was doing two years in prison, which I noticed his
behavior had gotten worse like his -- you know, he would
get frustrated and, you know, he couldn't think clearly

or things would frustrate him and he would get very

upset and he would go on rants and yell and argue which I

knew there was something mentally wrong and his mom
féssed to it.

So I said to her, Well, during his childhood.why
didn't you all continue getting him the help he needs? I

think honestly nobody just cared enough, even his own

:momma. She did -- and his aunt can vouch for that.

She's been around for life.

When he did go to I. O. P. at first and a doctor

" diagnosed him and put him on medication I believe the

first medication might have been Ritalin during-

‘childhood, which is now not on the market.

The family would say the Ritalin made him worse,

17
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okay, and that's what I would hear from there. Then it
stopped, medication, no help, nothing until his teenage
years. The behavior, getting put out of school -- he's
very intelligent, but the behavior, getting put out of
school and going from school to school they noticed there
was a problem and he had to get more help. So that's
when his mom tried again and put him back in I. 0. P. and
I think she did -- did she get him on the right track
with medication?

FEMALE SPEAKER: No, she didn't.

THE DEFENDANT'S WIFE: Yeah. So it was just a
failure all his life. Then he was just thrown to the
wayside. And even as an adult he said after the Navy it
had gotten worse. The P. T. S. D. set in, the anxiety.

Sometimes I would sit next to him and he'll just be
shaking like crazy and I'm like, What is going on, and
it's as a nerve condition, A. D. H. D. He's both
bipolar, schizophrenic. He doesn't sleep at night. He
may sleep for a total of three hours a night and he can
just jump right up and go to work but then he crashes at
a certain time of the day whereAhe can't function.

You know, he can't control those nerves and he
can't control things he says out of his mouth. You know,
sometimes before bed you can tell he's fighting his sleep

and he will go on rants for hours and I know there's a
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problem and I just couldn't get the help until I found
out about the V. A. And -- I'm sorry. (Crying). And I
pushed him for the past couple years to go to the V. A.
and to get the help and get back on the medication, and
I've really been.fighting this by myself because the
family just doesn't care enough.

He's the only child between his mom and dad and
they had him in their 40s, but they had other children
before him on both sides and I would hear horror stories
like his mom wouldn't feed him when he was a child and
then -- I'm so sorry. (Crying).

THE DEFENDANT: Everything she's saying, Your
Honor, is true.

THE COURT: That's all right. Take your time.

THE DEFENDANT'S WIFE: I just always wanted him to
get the proper treatment that nobody cared to give him
and I knew when he was in prison last time it was killing
him because he wasn't getting the help and now I feel he
really wants the help because he's dying inside.

He lost his mom while he was in prison but even
before she left from here I could see the changes in him
day-to-day while he was in prison and it did nothing but
make him worse. And every day is a struggle, you know.
I don't know from one day to the next what his attitude

or demeanor is going to be like.

19
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He's very intelligent, very intelligent, and he can

do anything that he wants to do. It's just his mental

capability is limiting him, is limiting him. And when we
went to mental health a couple days ago on Charlie Hall
Boulevard and the lady told.us he was a candidate and we
would accept =- we would love to accept him into the
program. I said, Well, this is exactly what be needs.

You know, we have been to the V. A. numerous times
and sometimes they have failed us where they say, Oh,
everybody comes in here and says they are crazy, and they
made a joke about it. Until recently I had to complain
to get him an appointment with the psychiatrist and
that's when they really realized, you know, there is a
problem here. Okay, now we want to help.

But I said, When are you going to wait, until it's
too late and he goes out here in sociéty and doesn't
think with good judgment and does something stupid and
throws his whole life away? I don't want to see him do
that.

As long as he's on medication and he's going
through counseling, seeing a psychiatrist I believe he
can get on the right track, but I can't do it alone. I
can't do it alone. And he has to want to do it for
himself, which I think he gets it now because he knows

I'm done if he doesn't.
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THE COURT: Thank you, ma'am. I'm sorry you had to
deal with those problems that he has caused you.

Mr. Jenkins, is there anything you'd like to tell
me?

THE DEFENDANT: I failed her. I came back home and
I failed her. What can I say, Your Honor. In 1995 a
horn blowing ship for man overboard. I can still see
that to this day. Everybody think I'm in the hood. None
of you all don't know. Everybody think I'm in the hood
hustling, I'm smoking. I put up a front.

When that man fell overboard it was a 19-year-old
Marine. If anybody in the military know, and there are
Veterans in here, most of you older gentlemen know
whenever a body falls overboard and it sits out in the
ocean, the 'sea salt for a while it turns green,
especially if they are Caucasian male. But at night,
Your Honor, the dreams, the faces change. First went to
my father, I got high. Then to my mother, got high.

I did not find out that I was eligible for benefits
from the V. A, all of these years because I was so
dependant of always taking advice of older people but it
was always the wrong advice. That's why I made the
decisions that I made, getting high, getting a piece here
and there, a hit here and there, something here or there

or a blunt here or there.

21
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But to get to the point and make it quick for you,
Your Honor, finally, I got the help. I got Zoloft and
the Zoloft has been helping me. I've been more steady at
work. I can give you a phone number for my boss. He can
vouch for that. Trazodone does help me sleep at night.
And everybody is giving me an opportunity.

Your Honor, I can sit up here and lie to you, tell
you, Oh, yeah, Your Honor, like most young people come in
here and try to feed you the hogwash. I can't do that,
Your Honor. When your gavel slam it doesn't really
matter. I can't sit up here and lie to you.

But one thing I can tell you, Your Honor. Counsel
Taylor did inform me that it's possibility of with the
sentence of a suspension, that if it's possible at the
final decision of your discretion.

Your Honor, this is my last go around and the thing
about it is she told me how hard it is and she told me
the statutes of it when it comes to the drug court,
mental health court and stuff like that. Like they say,
like I heard you tell a young man earlier, Your Honor,
the rest is on you.

Your Honor, I'm the last of 19. If you slam that
gavel right now I caused it. I take the blame for my
actions but at the same token I have failed and there are

people in the grave because I should have knew better
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but, Your Honor, I'm trying. And'all I can ask is to
have the Court to have mercy upon me.

I'm 40 years old. Why I.haven't learned yet but
I'm asking for God's sake if it's possible, Your Honor,
if I could just have one opportunity. I won't show back
up in your courtroom because of the simple fact of being
I heard the statutes.

Like I said, whatever the sentence is imposed with
a suspended sentence if I don't meet the criteria then
nobody else failed me. I failed me. All I ask, Your
Honor, Judge, is just give me one chance, but if I come
back again and then the rest is on me. I can't blame
nobody else but myself. I can't blame P. T. S. D. I
can't blame crack. I can't blame you. I can't blame
nobody else but me.

My parents did, my mother thought -- they really
didn't want me in the house. Oh, he's just a drug
dealer. He can't work. He just a drug dealer. You
understahd? But luckily the other family member that was
the eldest gave the household and Said, You know what?
I'm going to give you this opportunity because me and her
didn't get into-the house until about, what, 2013? Right
after T caught the charges is when we got in the house.
That's when the paperwork got signed over to the house on

Johns Island. Four bedrooms, two bathrooms, living room,
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dining room, den, beautiful fish pond, but guess who
flushing it down the toilet? Me. This and this.

Yes, Your Honor, I'm guilty. I am guilty of all my
deeds but, Your Honor, I'm making an effort to try to
turn it around because I see how much is at stake, over a
hundred years that I'm throwing away.

Yes, Your Honor, I regret my actions but I can
assure you, sir, in closing i1f given the opportunity and
if the sentence could be suspended, Your Honor, and I
could be entering into that program I'm done, I'm not
coming back. And that's by God and I put my right hand
up here. Thank you, sir.

THE COURT: All right. Thank you very much,

Mr. Jenkins. Let's take about a 10-minute recess before
we conclude this proceeding.

(WHEREUPON, a brief recess was taken.)

THE COURT: Okay. We're back on the record in the
Senior Jenkins matter. Let me just make a couple little
guick comments and observations, and I mentioned this
yesterday, that the Court has to struggle on a regular
basis of where the Court puts its priority insofar as a
particular defendant, one who has a drug broblem, and if
we always put our priority in providing help for a person
then no one would ever get punished because thé vast

majority of people who appear in general sessions court
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have drug problems, sad to say.

So there are times, many times, that the Court ha;
to put the priority on punishment versus providing help,
which you are wanting me to do, and certainly your
attorney has done an excellent job. I know she's doing
what she's supposed to do, and certainiy-if I were in
your place I would have déne the same thing as you but
what you all are wanting me to do is put'the priority on
the help and not on the punishment factor.

Well, I could do it if youf situation were

‘different but I'm looking at in 2010, I'm looking at a

sentence that a circuit court judge gave you, two counts
of aistribution, one proximity charge, 10 suspended to
four with two years probation. I can't overlook that.
Also, the fact that the State gave you a benefit of
allowing you to plead to a distribution second to avoid
the mandatory unsuspendable 10 years on a third, so you
got some benefit there. So I can't overlook that either.
Now, am I completely blind to your particular
situation? No. Not at all. You've got a very
supporting wife who was very heartfelt in her comments of
what you've put her through. I'm certainly, you knéw,
giving that consideration. But at the end of the day
I've got to put punishment as the primary priority here.

Probably if you were not in the State that you were
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in insofar as the drug issues, mental health issues this
sentence would be a lot worse. So that has been some
mitigating influence on my decision.

Mr. Jenkins, the sentence of the Court is you be
committed to the State Department of Corrections-for a
period of seven years, give you credit for 42 days that
you have served. Good luck to you, sir.

MS. YOUNG: Thank you, Your Honor.

(WHEREUPON, -the hearing was concluded.)
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CERTIFICATE

I, Sharon L. Vizer, Official Court Reporter for the
Ninth Judicial Circuit of the State of South Caroliha, do
hereby certify that the foregoing is a true, accurate and
complete transcript of record of all the proceedings had
and the evidence introduced in the hearing of the
captioned case in Circuit Court on the 28th day of August
2014.

I do further certify that I am neither of kin, counsel

nor have an interest to any party hereto.

August 12, 2015
S/Shavrov L. Viger
SHARON L. VIZER

CIRCUIT COURT REPORTER
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
COUNTY OF CHARLESTON ) NINTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
)
Senior Jenkins, #341212, ) 2015-CP-10-1855
)
Applicant, )
)
V. ) RETURN
)
State of South Carolina, )
: )
Respondent. )
)

The Respondent, making its Return to the application for Post-Conviction Relief (PCR)

filed April 13, 2015, would réspectfully show this Court:
| L.

The Applicant is presently confined in the South Carolina Department of Corrections
pursuant to orders of commitment of the Charleston County Clerk of Court. The Applicant was
indicted at the April 2013 term of the Charleston County Grand Jury for Distribution of Cocaine
Base (2013-GS-10-1996). Donna Taylor, Esquire, represented the Applicant. On August 28,
-2014, the Applicant pled guilty to the lesser included offense of Distribution of Cocaine Base,
2™ offense. The Honorable Donald B. Hocker sentenced the Applicant to confinement for seven
(7) years. The Applicant did not appeal his sentence or plea.

. Attached herewith and incorporated herein are the records of the Charleston County
Cletk of Court regarding the subject conviction(s), the application, and the guilty plea transcript.

The Respondent reserves the right to amend this Return upon receil;t of any relevant materials.
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In his current Application, the Applicant alleges that he is being held in custody

unlawfully for the following reasons:
1. “PWID, 2™ offense is not a lesser included
offense of PWID, first offense”
a. “SC Code Ann. 44-53-375 (b)(2) is not
lesser included offense of 375(B)(1)
2. “Violation of Notice requirement guaranteed by
U.S & S.C. Const. & statutes”
a. “There is no indictment alleging a
violation of S.C. Code 44/53/375(b)(2)”
3. “Breach of the plea agreement”
a. “The offense in which Applicant pled
guilty is not a lesser included offense”

Any claims not specifically enumerated in the PCR application or amendments will be
opposed by the State at evidéntiary hearing. All amendments should be made well in advance of
hearing and should be filed as required by Rule 11, SCRCP(a).

I

The Respondent submits plea counsel rendered effective assistance of counsel. In a Post-
Conviction Relief action, the Applicant bears the burden of proving the allegations in their
application. Butler v. State, 286 S.C. 441, 334 S.E.2d 813 (1985). Where the application alleges
ineffective assistance of counsel as a ground for relief, the Applicant must prove that "counsel's
conduct so undermined the proper functioning of the adversarial process that the trial cannot be
relied upon as having produced a just result." Strickland v. Washington, 466 U.S. 668, 104 S.Ct.
2052, 2064 (1984); Butler, 334 S.E.2d 813,

The proper measure of performance is whether the attorney provided representation

within the range of competence required in criminal cases. The courts presume that counsel

rendered adequate assistance and made all significant decisions in the exercise of reasonable



professional judgmént. Strickland, 466 U.S. 668. The Applicant must overcome this

presumption in order to receive relief, Cherry v. State, 300 S.C. 115, 386 S.E.2d 624 (1989).
The reviewing court applies a two-pronged test in evaluating allegations of ineffective

assistance of plea counsel. First, the Applicant must prove that counsel's performance was

deficient. Under this prong, the court measures an attorney’s performance by its "reasonableness

under professional norms." Cherry, 300 S.C. at 117, 386 S.E.2d at 625, citing Strickland.

Second, counsel's deficient performance must have prejudiced the Applicant such that "there is a
reasonable probability that, but for‘ counsel's unprofessional errors, the result of the proceeding
would have been different." Chetry, 300 S.C. at 117-18, 386 S.E.2d at 625. With respect to
guilty plea counsel, the Applicant must show that there is a reasonable probability that, but for
counsel's alleged errors, he would not have pled guilty and would have insisted on going to trial.

Hill v. Lockhart, 474 U.S. 52, 106 S.Ct. 366 (1985).

The Respondent submits that the Applicant cannot satisfy either requirement of the
Strickland test. However, the allegation of ineffective assistance of counsel probably raises
questions of fact that the record does not conclusively refute. Accordingly, the Respondent
requests an evidentiary hearing to fully resolve this issue. See Sharper v. State, 279 S.C. 264,
305 S.E.2d 247 (1983). |

Iv.

The Respondeht interprets the Applicant’s other claims as infringement of his rights
under certain amendments to the Uﬁited States Constitution. However, the Applicant fails to set
forth with spegiﬁcity the grounds upon which these constitutional violations are based. The
Uniform Post-Conviction Procedure Act requires that the Applicant must "... specifically set

forth the grounds upon which the application is based.” S.C. Code § 17-27-50 (2003). In an
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application for post-conviction relief, it is incumbent upon the Applicant to make at least a prima
facie showing which would entitle him to relief before an evidentiary hearing will be scheduled

and held. FWe'lch v. MacDougall,'246 S.C. 258, 143 S.E.2d 455 (1965); Blandshaw v. State, 245

S.C. 385, 140 S.E.2d 784 (1965). Sirice the Applicant has failed to n,iak‘e even a prima facie
showing, the Respondent ‘would submit that this allegation should be dismissed-fOr failing to
meet the requirements of the Uniform Post-Conviction Procedures Act. This allegation. is so
vague that it is impossible for the State to respond.

V.

Each and every allégation contained ‘within the application not hereinbefore: éither

expressly admitted, qualified or explained is hereby denied.

VI

WHEREFORE, having made its Return, the State requests that an evidentiary hearing be

held.

Respectfully submitted, .

ALAN WILSON
Attorney General

JOHN W. McINTOSH
Chief Deputy Attorney ng‘era_l

KAREN C. RATIGAN
Senior Assistant Députy Attorney General

J. RUTLEDGE JOHNSON
Assistant Reputy Attorney. General
Pz

By:_, — S
A@R& STFOR RESPONDENT
Office of the Attorney General
P.0O.Box 11549

Columbia, SC 29211
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )
) IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
COUNTY OF CHARLESTON )
)
_ ) 2015-CP-10-1855
SENIOR JENKINS, #341212 )
)
)
Applicant, )
)
Vs ) AFFIDAVIT OF SERVICE BY MAIL
)
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA, )
)
Respondent. )
)
L. I am an employee of the Respondentin the above—captioned action. \
2. Regular communication by mail exists throughout the State of South Carolina and that this

is a proper circumstance of service by mail.

3. I have this day served a copy of the Return in the above-captioned matter on the following
person by depositing same in the United States mail, postage prepaid:

James K. Falk, Esq.

Falk Law Firm, LLC
- PO Box 1058

Charleston, SC 29402

DATED this 24" day of November, 2015. ,

For Respondent
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. STATE OF SOUTH CAROCLINA

Court of Common Pleas

COUNTY OF CHARLESTON Case No. 2015-CP-10-2152

SENICR JEﬁKINS,
Applicant,
Vs, Transcript of Record

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA,

Respondent. DATE: January 9, 2017

e e e M e M e Nt et e e e et

BEFORE:

THE HONORABLE WILLIAM SEALS

APPEARANCE:

JAMES FALK
Attorney for the Applicant

ALICIA OLIVE
Attorney for the Respondent

Karen V. Andersen, RMR, CRR
Circuit Court Reporter




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

41

2
INDEX
EXAMINATION
Witness Name o Page
SENIOR JENKINS
Direct By Mr. FalKe--ceeeceuiorroieantontanrenneoiiiiioitnee. 6
Cross By Ms. OLive.:eeetieeitineiieeineerrtnenenenns 14
DONNA TAYLOR
Direct By MI. FalKe::reeoeeornnioarsaneaiuenasocennesuoanns 21
Cross By Ms. Olive.c:eieerenrannnnnsnns S 24
EXHIBITS
" Exhibit Descriptibn Identification Evidenc#
P-1 | Sentencing sheets 7




42

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

MS. OLIVE: May it please the Court, Your Honor.
This is Senior Jenkins, 2015-CP-10-1855. Your Honor,

Mr. Jenkins was indicted April 2013 term of the Grand Jury
for distribution of cocaine, third offense. He was
represented by Donna Taylor on that charge.

On August 28th, 2014, he pleaded guilty to the
lesser-included offense of distribution of cocaine, second
offense. That was before the Honorable Donald Hocker. Judge
Hocker sentenced him to seveﬁ years of confinement. He did
not appeal his sentence or plea.

He filed this application for post-conviction relief
on April 13th, 2015, alleging several grounds of —-- for
post-conviction relief. Your Honor, I would note this
application doesn't actually include an allegation of
ineffective assistance of counsel. I don't know if Mr. Falk
wishes to allege those grounds of ineffective assistance of
counsel, but we would move to dismiss them as independent
claims of post-conviction relief because they are not proper
claims for post—-conviction relief. They are direct appeal
issues.

Your Honor, Mr. Jenkins is present in the courtroom

today and represented by Mr. Falk. I will turn it over to

him at this time.

THE COURT: Mr. Falk.

MR. FALK: I think my client -- granted, we could
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have maybe done a better job filing an amended PCR.‘ My
client ié claiming ineffective assistance of counsel for
trial counsel to not have brought to the court's attention
the problem with the underlying indictment in this case in
that the indictment does not allege that it was a second or
third offense.

And our argument would be —-- one of our arguments
would be that possession third —- excuse me, ﬁossession
second is not a lesser-included offense of possession third.

But our probably stfonger argument that we have is.
that the prior convictions that he had, whether or not that
should have been treated as one offense or two offenses, my
client was never made aware that there was a ‘possibility that
should have only been treated as one offense.

| If you look at the plea colloquy, in 2010, he plead
guilty to two counts of distribution, two counts of
proximity. And it would appear that there was the assumption
that that would be treated as offense number one, offense

number two. And he stood before the court that day on

offense number three. My client, I don't think, was ever

apprised of the fact that that —-- first of all, he doesn't
know the indictment that he received -- really doesn't know
what he's going forward on, whether it's first, second or
third. And he feels that trial counsel didn't give him

adequate advice on that.
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.And if he was getting a concession from the court
for pleading guilty, which it would appear that he was
allowed to plead to the lesser-included offense, his argument
would be that he only -- it should have been going from
second to first, as opposed to third to second, because it's
an arrest in 2010, all of which -- I have the certified
copies of the sentencing sheets, affidavits from the 2010
conviction. And he was before Judge Harrington on the same
date, plead guilty to everything on the same date. There was
no intervening arrest.

The convictions allege contact that happened on
January 20th and January 22nd at the same location. 2And we
believe there's an argument to be made that that should have

been rolled up as one offense for enhancement purposes also.

So here's where we are.

THE COURT: I'm going to grant the State's motion to
dismiss and allow you to amend the application for
ineffective assistance of . counsel. »I'm ready when you are.

MR. FALK: At this time, I would like to call my
client to the stand.

SENTIOR JENKINS
having been duly sworn, tesfifies as follows:

THE WITNESS: I swear by Allah to tell the truth,

the whole truth. Senior Benjamin Jenkins, S-e-n-i-o-r,

B-e-n~j—a-m-i-n, J-e-n-k-i-n-s.
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6
DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. FALK:

Q. Who were you represented by in this case?

A, Donna Taylor.

Q. Did she represent you on the original, on your
Charges in 20107

A. No, sir.

0. Who represented you on that?

A. Cassandra Winslow.

Q. Was that a public defender?

A, Yes, sir, she was.

Q. And in 2010, could you tell us, did you plead
guilty?

A. Yes, sir, I did.

Q. And were you -- Your Honor, I don't know if you want
me to lay a foundation for this. 1 just would offer his
sentencing sheets and all certifiea copies. If I may
approach for a moment.

THE COURT: Sure.
BY MR. FAILK:

Q. Does that appear to be your signature?

A, Yes, sir; it was.

Q. Okay. Your Honor, at this time -- T will give these
to —-- Your Honor, at this time, we would move to enter these

as Applicant's Exhibit No. 1.
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THE COURT: Any okjection?
MS. OLIVE: ©No objection, Your Honor.
(Plaintiff's Exh. 1, Sentencing Sheets, is
received in evidence.)
BY MR. FALK:

Q. What kind of discussion did you have with the trial
counsel, Ms. Taylor, about your prior arrest and your
criminal record?

THE WITNESS: Good morning, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Good morning.

A, First and foremost, I want to go ahead and start off
by saying that on the morning -- actually, -that afternoon,
and the reason why I'm filing for my ineffective assistance
of counsel, because I feel that counsel was ineffective
assistance for the way she advised me on which I was supposed
to plead a lesser-included offense for which I was indicted.

Also, within the body and the heading of my
indictment, they never stated first, second or third. So on
the afternoon when I came in, and I told Attorney Taylor, my
wife also sitting back there, Alicia Magnum Jenkins, she was
also present when I was talking‘to Attorney Taylor, and I
told her —— she was like, you are being indicted for third
offense. I never, ever had a second offense.

But as time went on, when I was investigating,

during the investigation, preparing all the stuff and
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everything as far as my PCR application is concerned, also
Attorney Falk, also I had filed a ﬁotion for summary judgmeht
that states in there that on that day when I was talking to
Attorney Taylor, I told her I never, ever had a third
conviction.

So during the time of my ~- when I got the paperwork
back, when I filed also with the clefk of court, I asked for
my old sentencing sheets back from 2010 to figure out how T
got the third conviction. I never, as far as my PWID or
distribution and manufacturing, my charge, it was all first
offenses. The only time it was considered as a second
offense, when they did the proximity of a school. And also,
Your Honor --

Q. Mr. Jenkins, let me ask you. <I think the judge is
going to want me to>ask you questions as opposed to going
into a narrative. And if there's anything in the end you
want to wrap up with, I will give you that opportunity.

A. Okay. |

Q. So what kind of discussions did you have with your
trial counsel about your prior drug arrest?

A. Well ~-

Q. Because you said that day -- I think your testimony
was you walked in and she told you it was a third offense,
and you said no.

A. Yeah. I told her it wasn't no third offense,
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because I only was convicted under one. She sald because it
was two different dates, or whatever, that they can consider
it, you understand, as one offense,'but they can come back
and separate it. You understand? Because January 6th and
January 8th was the original dates that the crimes had
happened in 2010. But they ran it altogether as one offense.
So she said that they can come back and separate it.

Q. Was there any discussion with the court or about
whether or not that should be treated as a first offense or
second offense?

A. No, sir.

Q. Did she tell you that -- did she tell you any of the.
factofs that would be considered as to how they would be able
to sentence it as a first offense, whether it would be
considered really the same transaction?

A. No, sir. When she -- before we even went in the
courtroom, she stepped off in another room to speak to the
solicitor. When she came back, she told me that they said it
was a third offense. That was it. And I kept -- all the way
up to the time before the plea hearing, I kept tellingvher, I
never, ever got convicted of a second conviction.

Q. Did she show you your NCIC records, your criminal
record sheet? Was she just going on -— was it your
understanding that she-was just going on what the solicitor

was telling her?
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A. Yes, sir.

0. Was it your understaﬁding that you were going to
plead guilty, but that you were going to get some concession
for pleading guilty?

A. Yes. I was supposed to be pleading to a
lesser—included offense, which I accepted it was.

Q. And so would it be your understanding today that a
lesser-included offense of —~- what is your understanding of
whether or not possession second is a lesser-included offense

of possession third?

_A. Well, if I'm -- I was charged with distribution,
so --
Q. Excuse me, distribution.
A. Well, of course, you know, distribution, in order

for a lesser—~included offense, for a leséer—included cffense,
the greater offense has to have at least one or more
édditional elements to differentiate the two offenses. Here,
the elements are the same for both offenses. Distribution.is
not the lesser-included offense of distribution. Possession
is the lessér—included offense of distribution. I'm citing
from Schmuck v. U.S., Your Honor, 489 U.S. 705,

Q. But none of the indictments that you received said
whether or not it was a first or second or third offense; is
that correct?

a. No, sir. I was never put on notice of which one it
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was through my indictmeﬁt. Even aiso, if you -- over there
in my papérwork, you can see, Your anor, if Attorney Falk
will show it to you and show it to other counsel, that also,
in my arrest affidavit, it says possession on arrest
affidavit. And then on -- no, on the arrest warrant, but on
the affidavit, it says distribution. And never said first,
second or third. So it's still erroneous. And it was
nothing in the fecord.

Q. Safe to say, you went into the plea not really
knowing what your charge was?

A. Exactly.

0. How much conversation did you have with your lawyer
about what your charge was?

A. Not.even 20, 25 minutes.

Q. How much time total did you spend with her over the
course of her representation?

A, About 40, 45 minutes, something like that.

0. Okay. Were YOu out on bond at the time?
A. Yep.
Q. So just so I can summarize, it's your position that

distribution second is not a lesser-included offense of

distribution third because all the elements are exactly the
same?
A. Yes, sir.

Q. And it's also your argument that the indictments
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that you were given failed to give you proper notice of what

your charges were against you?

A. Correct.
Q. And also, your argument that you were not apprised
about whether or not the two —- you gave different -~-

MR. FALK: may I approach, Your Honor?

THE COURT: Sure.

MR, FALK: I'm sorry. Beg the Court's indulgence
one more moment, please.
BY MR. FALK:.

Q. What I'm going to show you is the arrest affidavit
which covered Warrant No. K343323, which was in that packet
from your 2010 conviction. And then I'm also going to show
you the arrest affidavit from Warrant No. K343318. And I'm

going to show you that these two dates, difference on the

dates, one said January 20th and the other one says January

22nd.

I believe you testified earlier that different
dates -- does that sound right? There's January 22nd, is
that --

A. Correct.

Q. Okay. So they were -- tHey did occur two days
apart?

A. Yeah.

Q. And that surrounds roughly right to you; it was
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January 20th and 22nd?
A. Right.
Q. You weren't arrested in-between that on these two
occasions, were you?

A. No. They served -- they served arrest warrant, what
was it, like, February, like February, like February 10th or
something.

Q. Is that because there was a confidential informant?

Do you know?

A. Yes.

Q. Was it the same confidential informant?

A. I believe so, it was.

0. I think I've sort of resummarized what your

arguments are. Is there anything else you want to add?

A. No. Just basically, you know, it's just what had
happened in such close proximity of time, of course. We know
that South Carolina law notes that any time whenever a
crime -- usually two crimes of the same statute occur within
a certain proximity of time, they can be constituted counts
as one offense, one offense during the time.

Q. That day, you thought you were going to go in, and
in exchange for not bringing the State through the cost of
bringing you to trial, you would plead?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. But that you were going to get some kind of
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concession for that, and that concessiocn was to plead to the

lesser—included offense?

A. Correct.

Q. In that time, you knew that you had.a prior in
20107

A. Correct.

Q. And.so it was your understandiné that this was now
2000 -- thaf this was now a second offense?

A, Correct.

Q. Okay. And at no time did you ever receive any type

of indictment or any information from the State saying that
this Was'—— that you were being charged with a third
offense?

A. Correct, correct. The pnly time -- énly thing that

ever was noted that they considered it a second offense was

" the proximity of the school. And with that beiﬁg said, you

know, that that's extra elements.

Q, Yeah. 'I mean, that was one transaction. So they
got you with distribution, and separate for that distribution
happening within pfoximity of the school?

A. Correct, correct.

MR. FALK: I have no further questions, Your Honor.
Please answer any questions the attorney general may have.
CROSS—EXAMINATION

BY MS. OLIVE:
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Q. Good morning, Mr.-Jenkins.

A. Good morning.

Q. So, ultimately, you did plead guilty to a second
offense, right?

A. On what, on this occasion right here?

Q. Right.

A Right.

Q. | So you are here today arguing that you were indicted

for a third offense, but you should only have beeh‘indicted

for a second offense?

A, Yes, ma'am, correct.
Q. But, ultimately, you pled to a second offense?
A. Yes, ma'am.’

MR. FALK: Your Honor, if I may, that was our whole
point. He was never indicted for a third offense He was
indicted for a distribution charge. He never got notice of a
third'offense.

THE COURT: You may continue your cross-—examination.

MS. OLIVE: Thank you, Your Honor.

BY MS. OLIVE:

Q. Have you seen your indictment for this charge?

A, Yes, ma'am. I have it. .It's right there. Also, 1if
you look yourself, counsel, within the heéding or the body on
that indictmént, doesn't say first, second, third, seventh,

not@ing. Just says distribution of cocaine base.
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Q. Exactly. So it doesn't tell you whether it's first,
second or third offense at all?

A, Exéctly.

Q. Just has the statute?

A. Yes, ma'am. And I'm supposed to be put on notice.
That didn't put me on notice of nothing, because the
indictment was defective itself.

Q. But you knew that you were being charged with this

possession with intent distribute?

A. Yes, ma'am,.

Q. Okay.

A, And my assumption was second offense, ma'am.

Q. And .you knew that from the indictment?

A. Yes, ma'am.

Q. Okay.

A. No. Pardon myself. Correction. I knew that from

how many times I was arrested.
Q. Okay. But didn't you also have a prior.conviction

for possession of cocaine from 20017

A. Yes, ma'am. That was seven years past, which is
actually -- excuse me, ten years.
Q. Okay. And, again, you were actually -- were you not

serving probation fof your 2010 offenses when you were -—-
when you pleaded guilty to this charge?

A. . Yes, ma'am.
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Q. Okay.

A. No, ma'am. .I actually had completed probation. I
completed probation May 30th. Before I pleaded guilty, I
completed probation May 30th. I pled guilty on August
28th.

Q. Okay. But your 2010 éonviction, you got 10 years
suspended to four years with two years of probation?

A. Yes, ma‘am.

Q. Okay. And those offense dates for those charges,

one was on January 20th of 2010, and one was on January 22nd

of 20107

A. Yes, ma'am.

Q. Okay.

A. Both ran concurrent.

Q. I'm sorry?

A Everything ran concurrent, the proximity and the

distribution all ran concurrent.

Q. But those offenses happened on two different days,
right?

A. Yes, ma'am.

Q. So, Mr.'Jenkins, are you here today wanting a trial?

A, Well, actually, I'm being granted relief. I just
want correction on my charge. First of all, because I was
supposed to be pleading toipossession,-not distribution.

Q. Okay. So you are seeking a correction of your
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charge to a second offense from a third offense?

A, No, correction on my charge from distribution to
possession. That's what my agreement. I was supposed to be
pleading to a lesser-included offense.

Q.  But you pleaded guilty to the lesser—includeq
offense of distribution, cocaine base, second, correct?

A. Counselor, it's still the same offense. That's what
I'm saying. In order for it to be a lesser-included offense,
there has to have -- for the greater offense, it has to have
at least one or more additional elements to differentiate the
two offenses. They are the same offense. That's not --
distribution is not the lesser-included offense of
distribution now.

Q. So it's your position today -- you are asking for a
trial today, right? |

A, Yeah.,

Q. Okay. So you want to get t;ied on your distribution
charge, because that's what you were indicted for, was
distribution, right?

A.” . Yes, ma'am. But I was supposed to be pleading,
because my plea agreement was -- which is a breach. I was
supposed to be pleading to»leéser—included offense. The
boxes is clearly checked and marked that the agreement was I
was supposed to be pleading to a lesser-included offense.

But if both offenses are one and the same, how could it be a
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lesser—-included offense of which I was charged and indicted.
It's not.

Q. Okay. So you disagree that the second offense is a
lessef—included offense of a third ocffense?

A. I disagrge that distribution is not the
lesser-included offense, ma'am, of distribution. The
lesser-included offense of dist;ibution is possession.
That's the lesser charge of distribution.

Q. But on the record at your plea, it was stated that
you were;pleading to distribution, cocaine base, second

offense, correct?

A. Yes, ma'am,'on advice of my counsel, ma'am.

Q. There was neﬁer any offer to plead to possession,
right?

A, No, no. I'm assuming that -- by my counsel's advice

as to what I pled to, you know. I didn't know gntil actually
before I went on in the file, the paperwork, and went in the
law library and did my research myself of finding out which
is the lesser-included offense of the charge. So the lesser
charge of which I was pleading to is possession.

Q. But you didn't tell the judge that day that you
wanted to withdraw your plea?

A. If I had knew, if I had knew that it was not the
lesser-included offense which I was indicted for, I would

have never had pled guilty to it. I would have insisted on
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going to trial.
Q. Is that because you wanted less time?
A, No, ma'am. I just wanted to be éharged the correct

charge in which I was supposed to be agreeing upon, which is
the lesser-included offense.

Q. Okay. But you never said anything to the judge that
day? .

A, No, ma'am. I went off my counselor's advice.

Q. And you told the judge you had no complaints against
counsel and that you did not. need any more time to consult
with counsel.

A. No, ma'am, because I assumed my counsel was awaie of
everything going on. 1I trusted'my counsel.

MS. OLIVE: Thank you, Mr. Jenkins. That's all the
questions I have.
MR. FALK: No redirect.
THE COURT: All right. You may step down.
Call your next witness, if you havé one.
MR. FALK: Ms. Taylor, Donna Taylor to the stand.
DONNA TAYLOR,
having been duly sworn, testifies as follows:
THE CLERK: If you will please state your name,
spelling your last name.
THE WITNESS: Donna K. Taylor, T-a-y-l-o-r.

DIRECT EXAMINATION
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BY MR, FALK:

Q. Ms. Taylor, how did you come to represent
Mr. Jenkins in this action?

A. His brother was a long-time client of mine and
contacted me. I had started my career as a public defender.
And I héd represented his brother back then, and he asked me
if T would meet with him. I think he had had a public
defender prior to my representation. And then Melissa Gay,
another private attorney, had represented him.

And so I talked with Melissa to see if it was okay.
and then I agreed that I would taik with him. And that's how
I met him.

Q. Okay. And during the course of your representation,
did you review his NCIC criminal record report?

A. I did.

Q. Did you draw any conclusions about how many prior
offenses that he had?

A. I looked at. the NCIC feport. I checked sbme other
information. And I met with Ms. Young, who was the
prosecutor at the time. 1In additioﬁ, and I could be wrong
about this, but my recolléction is, and from the notes and
from what was.in the plea, I believe, there was a 2006
conviction for substance abuse, which she counted as a prior.
And then there were the charges from 2010. And so based on

that, she -- and there was information from -- it may have
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been -- and, I'm sorry, I don't remember entirely, a Victoria
may have been the public defender.

But I know that I got from either the public
defender or from Ms. Gay an e-mail from prior counsel of his
that was communicating the same offer that we ended up taking
a year or so before, which was distribution third, and
related that he had this 2006 conviction in addition to the
series in 2010.

So my recollection is that it was -- those were the
two priors that got him to the third. There was no question
that Kelly believed that he was a third, this conviction
would have'been -— the conviction of my distribution, because
he also had two prior possessory arrests in the interim that

he was facing.

Q. Was he ever indicted for distribution, third
offense?
A. He was indicted for distribution of cocaine in the

December 1st, 2012, incident, which is what he pled to.

Q. So you negotiated a plea agreement?

A, I really didn't negotiate. Like I indicated, the
offer had been made to him prior to him coming to me. When
he came to meet with me with his wife, and I've spoken again
to his brother, who, as I said, I've known for years, Senior
had issues. He had mental health issues. 2And he had a

decade's—-plus drug addiction issue. What I told him I would
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try to do for him, if he wanted me to -- because when his

brother contacted me, Senior was due to go to court with, I
believe, Ms. Gay. And he was not happy with her. So he wés
trying to replace her. BAnd it was two years plus after the

arrest. So I knew that it was something that was coming up

quickly.

And I was clear with him and his wife and his
brother that if he wanted a trial, there was nothing I could
do for him. This was an undercover buy to a police officer.
There's audio. There's an informant tape. There's video of
the transaction. If he wanted to go to trial, I was not
going to ride that pony for him,. |

But if he wanted me to see if I could help get him a
better offer, and specifically get him into either drug court
or mental health court, which was the primary goal, that I
would do that and I would be happy to then take the case, if
he wanted me to try to do that with the understanding that he
would, one way or the other, be entering a plea, because he
never denied the transactions, any of them.

Q. When did you tell him that this would be his third
offense?

A. The first time I ever met Senior, he knew it was his
third offense, charge. That's what he was charged with. He
had already gotten the information —-- again, he may be able

to tell you. Victoria was the public defender he had before
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Ms. Gay, or who she was, but there was an e-mail to her of:
This is the third offense, but I will let him plead to a
second. It was a tiny, tiny amount of crack that was sold.

Q. So this was not a deal that you negotiated? -This
was a deal he already had?

A . He had already received this offer, yes.

Q. Okay. And did you explain to him what the
lesser—included offense was that he was pleading to?

A. What I explained to him was that he was facing, if

we were to go to trial or he were to plead straight up
distribution>of cocaine, third offense, that>Ms. Young, due
to his history and minute amount of drugs involved, most Qf
his priors, I think, if not at all, were possessory, that he
would be allowed to blead to a second offense of
distribution, not a third.

MR. FALK: No further questions.

THE COURT: All right. Cross.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MS. OLIVE:

Q. Thénk you, Your Honor. Good morning, Ms. Taylor.
A. Good morning.

Q. Ms. Taylor, how long have you been p;acticing law?
A. Since 1984.

Q. And what portion of that has been criminal?

A. First eight years was completely as a public
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defender in private practice from '91 until 2006. It was
probably 85 to 90 percent still criminal, but primarily in
the Federal District Court.

In 2006, I, along with three other women, formed a
firm. And I still primarily do criminal. They do
substantialiyvcivil. So I have sort of learned a little bit,
but more than I'm still comfortable with; civil practice, but
I also do probate work.

Q. Had you represented defendants charged with drug

charges prior to representing Mr. Jenkins?

A. Yes.

Q. Were you familiar with the enhancements statutes?
A. Yes.

Q. Do you recall how many times you met with

Mr. Jenkins? I know that you stated you were retained pretty
late in the game. Do you recall how many times you met with
him?

A. Well, I don't know that I was ever retained, but I
represented Senior from late spring or early that summer, not
for a very long time. But I met with him and his wife on at
least four different occasions in my office: It was
primarily because, again, my goal was to get his medical
records, which we were able to get. I was trying to get him,
becausé he had been in the, I think, Navy. He had veterans

benefits. And I spoke with Meredith at the VA, who runs a
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program for vets in trouble with substance abuse, which they
were familiar with Senior. He had had a diagnosis of
post-traumatic stress. So he had some counseling with that.

He was self-medicating. He was still addicted. He

had been addicted since the mid '90s. His wife, who was very
helpful, but also had some issues, was trying, as well as his
brother, trying to get him to get into a program. And we had
him ready to go into the program, but then he used again.
And so the position was that they were not going to try to --
the prosecutor was not willing to ?ut him into mental health
court because of his history of noncompliance and because it
was a distribution. They had trouble with both of those.

So we met several times for significantly longer
ever than 45 minutes. We talked about his history. And we
talked about what he needed to be doiﬁg and how we could get
him where we needed to get him.

Q. Did you have discussions with him concerning his --
the likelihood that he would not be convicted if he had gone
to trial-?

A. Did I have discussions with him? We had
discussions. The very first discussion was that if he -- if
he wanted fo go to trial, then I was not going to be able to
help him. I was not willing to take on a case that was
already two years old, up for trial, especially this case,

which, again, was overwhelming evidence available to the




66

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

27

State. But he never wanted a trial. He never denied that he
had done this transaction. So we didn't -- there was never,
ever any idea of going to trial.

Q. Did you feel that you had any grounds to challenge
the indictment in this case? |

A. No.

Q. Did you'attempt to —-- you stated there was already
this offer on the table. Did you attempt to —-- did you speak
with the solicitor concerning any more favorable offefs?

A, I had several discussions with Ms. Young about what
we were trying to do. And I still believe that it would have
been the right thing to do for him. Whether he would have
been able to handle it and succeed through it, I don't know.
But what I was trying to do was to get him a probationary
sentence where he could be put back into the VA program and
be monitored to have this one more chance to see if he could
get a handle on his situation.

Even after the plea where all of that was presented
in documenfs as well to our judge, I did a motion to
reconéider and then resubmitted that. And Judge —-- I think
it was Hocker, if I pronounced it correctly, who was very
compassionate, very nice throughout the whole process in the
original plea, but allowed us to have a phone conference to
talk about that. And I think his problem was that the

two-year prior sentence had been a ten-year sentence. And he
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had already given him less than his prior prison sentence
that didn't seem to affect his parﬁicipation in the narcotics
world. |

And he was very nice. He responded to it. Put in
the order, but just said he just couldn't do what I asked,
which was to give him -- I think suspend it down to two
years. That would allow him to have time in the prison to be
completely clean, come back out supervised, and enter the
veterans program. |

Q. So you made a motion to reconsider, but,lultimately,
Judge Hocker denied that motion?

A. Yes.

Q. Were there ever any discussions with the solicitor
about pleading to a possession charge as opposed to a
distribution charge?

A, Well, there were. And he had, in addition to the
distribution charge, two possessory charges pending at the
time that I represented him as well. I mean, of course, I
asked, can he plead to one of those. But, of course, she
said no, he sold to an undercover cop. |

Q. So the solicitor was unwilling to -~ the State was
unwilling to offer anything less than the second offense?

A. They were unwilling to not only offer anything less,
but to offer either of the two alternative options or any

nonprison time. She actively sought prison time.
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Q.

A,

Q.

Did

you explain this to Mr. Jenkins?

Every time we met.

You

stated previously that he never indicated a

desire to go to trial?

A,

have.

Never.

_MS.

THE

MR.
THE
Any
MS.
MR.

THE

OLIVE: Thank you. That's all the gquestions I

COURT: Any redirect?

FALK: No redirect..

COURT: You may step down. Thank you.
other witnesses?

OLIVE: No witnesses from the State.
FALK: No witnesses.

COURT: I will think about the matter today and

I will rule by the end of the day. Thank you.

(Whereupon, proceedings are adjourned.)
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Certified Realtime Reporter for the State of South Carolina
at Large, do hereby certify that the foregoing traﬁscript is
a true, accurate and complete Transcript of Record of the
proceedings.

I further certify that I am neither related to nor
counsel for any party to the cause pending or.interested in

the events thereof.
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IN-THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS

STATE OF SOUTH.CAROLINA )
COUNIYOF Chaglestor g - o |
Z'S:':I‘ATE' VS, ' ) INDICTMENT/CKSE#:: 2010681003224
S _SENIOR JENKINS ) AW K318 )
AKAL : ey DateofOffensey _U20/010
Rice: _B o M A 3 ) s §: MS0IBEHA
DOB: —-I?_Ti—._ _ ) CDRCode#: _ 3014
Address: -KENNEDY )
b e CHARLESTON. : ) SENTENCE SHEET
' 3
*CDL Yes[ ] No[] CMV Yesl] No[] Hazmat¥es[[] No(J
Tnv disposition of the said indictment comes now: thie Defendaiit who was. [1 CONVICTED OF or X|PLEADS-
TO: PWID/Dist/Mfs CocameBase m:Melh 15t Offense '
inviclation of § 44-53-0375(B) ) of 1he s C Code of Laws, bearmg CDR.Code # 3014 3
X NON-VIOLENT ] VIOLENT [JSERIQUS [JMosT SERIOUS [:[Manda{ory GPS(CSC QE]>‘§17=25‘+4_-5,,
‘wiminer: 1st.or Lewd Act)
e chnrgem. [X_]As Tndicted,, DLess‘er Included Offense, [ JDefendant Waives Presentment toﬁrand,lury. {defendant's initials)

-

‘Regommendation by the State.

FoeUY

- Aﬁomey Tor Dofendant SC Barf

ithout Negonatxons of Recommendat'on,

|:] Negotiated Semence,

WHEREFORI-,, the Deféndant is commited to'the _ FSiate. Bepartménbof’-ébrtéétiq‘ms‘, l:] ‘Counfy’ ]IBetemmn Centes‘,
f‘or @ determmate tetm of ' otk .' or. [ wnderthe Youthful Offender Act not o excecd ' years '
and/or to pay afineof$ tfiat upon the service of L. days/months/years and/m payment

of §  plus.costs:and agsgssments as: applicable®; the baldnce is suspended- w1th pmbatlon for-

months/years and subject to: Soiith-Carolind Department 6 Probation, Parole and Pardon Services standard condmons of
probation, ‘whichare incorporated by reference. : C
SZONCURRENT or | CONSECUTIV'E 10 Senterice oIt _ L ;

“The Defendant is to be given credit for time servied-pursiant to 5.C. Code: § 24-13:40 to be caleulated-and applied
by ihe- State Department of Corregtions,

[:] The Defendant i§ {0 be placed onthe Ccniral Registry of Child Abuse and Neglect pursuant 10 S:C. Code §17-25-135,

Pursusnt to’18 U 8.C Seetion 922,it is unlawinl for'a person vonvisted of a:viclation of Section 162320 or16-25~65 (Cmninal
Domestic Violence )to ship,iransporé,possesg;or recelye g firenrmor ammunition.

&PECIAL CONDITIONS:

'——"E]RESTITUTEON*‘“EI Déferred ] Def‘Walvesﬂesring‘“—E]ﬂrdereﬁ—xi'“"“ : _ : —
Total: ..§ o, plus20% fee: 8 days/houss Public Service Employment
Payinent Terms: AT TEST: A TRiGE Gy ObiainGED  [] '

[ Setby SCDEPPS JULE ., ARMSTRONG (&2 Attend Vioc, Rehab. or Job-Corp.
i <o B = May serve W/E begining
‘j;“"“’““ , - Ve Substance Abuse Counseling [

ine: - - TR T ST o

. - Random Diug/Alcahol testing 0
s 8 1451206 (Asscsamenls 107.5 %) $ =
- — Fine may be pd. in equal, congecutiv weeldy/monthly

_,_g 4:1-211(A)(t) (Conv Sureharge) 100 _$ 00,000 s, o § - beginning,
§14:1-211(A)2) (DUT Surchiarge) 3100 § ° T
§ 56-5:2995 (DU Assessment) 1 Oﬂi‘hg—-*——r - ‘paid to Puflic Definder Fund
§ 56-1:286.(DU1 Breatli Test) $257g ' A ~N -
§ 47. lZ(Pubhc Def/Prob) $500° O — A +—
2§ 14:1-212.(Law Enfotcs, Funding) ) 525_ g 3&00‘ S s.A/w R

~—~——§ 14-1-243:Drug Court Surcharge)—— $I00 57 A 27 ' L L

§.50-21-114(BUI Breafh Test Fes) -o80Tg T T :
.g ‘56-5-2043(7)-(Vehicle Assessivient) $40fes” § A ) ' 1 Appomted PD gr appomtgd ?ther counse
§' 90.7/(SCCIA Surcharge) 535 500 iﬁ;l? ;gg;g;lslmo e paid to Clep
3% to County’ (if pald in installinents) . $ é ?O . &P _

TOTAL . : A _
o PresidingJud;

~Clerk ofCourtI Deputy Clerk Tudge Code;

Couft Repoiter:, |- /}’? Y Scn(en’cebate:.

SCCAZIT(11/24009)
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WITNESSES

Charleston City Police Depértment ‘

AGENCY CASE NUMBER
1001125

ARREST WARRANT NUMBER

K343318

DATE OF ARREST K

March 5, 2010
ACTON OF GRAND JURY 3

] ) ol
Foreperson of Grand Jury HAY 1 g 2010
Date; .

“VERDICT

- ~ineT

Foreperson of Petit Jury Dats:

INDICT

T
s et b2

A

pockerno. 2010GS1003224

The State of South Carolina
County of Charleston

COURT OF GEMERAL SESSIONS

May Term 2010

10 12 (D))
THE STATE

vs.

SENIOR JENKINS
poz: 1575
B/M

I

Indictment for

Distribution of Cocaine Base

71

FILED

6/2/2010 5:30:08 PM
JULIE J. ARMSTRONG
CLERK OF COURT
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) Y.~ INDICTMENT

) T e C e e

COUNTY OF CHARLESTON )

At a Court of General Sessions, convened on May 10, 2010 the Grand Jurors of Charleston County present
upon their oath: ‘ )

Pistribution-of Cocaine Base—
That in Charleston County, South Carolina, on or about January 20, 2010, t_he_ Defendant, SENIOR JENKINS, did
mantfacture, distribute, dispense, deliver, purchase; or did aid, abet, attempt, ot conspire to manufacture, distribute,
dispense, deliver, or purchase; or did possess with the intent to distribute, dispense or deliver a controlled substance
o a controlled substance analogue, to wit: Cocaine Base; in violation of 44-53-375 of the South Carolina Code of

\

Laws (1976) as amended.

Algainst the peace and dignity of the State, and contrary to the gtatute in such case made and provided.

E 0, Bl

/ STEPHANIE B\ LINDER

ASSISPANT-SOEICITOR:




Charleston Police Department.
* STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

COUNTY OF CHARLESTON AFFIDAVIT
Personally appear before me, a magistrate of this county one, Inv. J. Shealy, B

who first being duly sworn deposed and says that, Senior Jenkins,
did within this county and state on the 20 January 2010 violate the criminal laws of the State of South

Carolina in the following particulat:
' DESCRIPTION OF OFFENSE

Distribution of Cocaine Base
44.53.375

.. The affiant states there is probable cause to believe that the defendant named did commit the crime set forth
and that such probable canse is based on the following facts:

That.on January 20, 2010 at approximately 1407hrs., while in. the area of Senate St. and Strawberry Ln., which
ig-located in the City and County of Charleston South Carolina 29403, the above named defendant (Senior

. Jenkins) did knowingly, willingly, and unlawfully vioiate South Carolina Statute (44-53-375) Distribution of
Go,came Base in the following manner:

Ihat on the above date, time, and location, the defendant did distribute 0.10 grams of an off white in color rock
1ik& substance consistent with that of Cocaine Base to a confidentail informant (CI) working under the direction
and control of the Charleston Police Department Narcotics Unit in exchange for a sum of prerecorded US
Currency taken from the Offical Narcotics Fund, Prior to the transaction, the CI was equipped with an
aﬁdlo/VLdeo recording device and the entire transaction was recorded. The Charleston Police Department
Forensu: Division tested the off white in color rock like substance to be positive as 0.10 grams of Cocaine Base.
It ‘should be noted that the narcotics transaction did cccur within one half mile of Charleston Catholic Schoo] at

888 King St. Charleston, SC 29403,

AL he above is true and believable based on the observation and investigation of Sgt. Robertson Inv. Shealy, Inv.
Grill, Inv. Sumner, Inv. Piecuch, Inv. Galluccio, and Sgt. Lites of the City of Charleston Police Department.

$WORN TO AND SUBSCRIBED BEFORE ME < %%
THIS'' 5 o DAY OF W \owse J . 2010 " AFFIAN

180 Lockwood Blvd.
Charleston, SC 29403

RA43.577.7434
SR=—=y 1T

c":!/)w 7/—\/ 7\(1\/\ (L.S.)

SIGNATURE OF JUDGE /

COMPLAINT #: 1001125
WARRANTH - 24321¢
CPD Form OT3
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o Charleston Folice Department
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

COUNTY OF CHARLESTON ABFIDAVIT

who first being duly swoin deposed and says that, Sendor Jenkins,
did within this county and state on the 22 January 2010 violate the ctiminal laws of the State of South

Carolina in the following particulsr:
DESCRIPTION OF OFFENSE

Distribution of Cocaine Base
4453375

The affiant states there is probable-cause-to believe that the defendant named did ¢ornniit the crime set forth.

That on Janvary 22, 2010 at-approximately 1615hrs., while in the area of Senate St: and StrawberryTin,, which
is Jocated in theCity-and County of Cliarleston South Carolina 29403, the above named defendant:(Senior
Jenkins) did knowingly, willingly, and unlawifuilly violate South-Carolina Statute (44- -53-375) Distribution of
Cocame Base in the following manner:

That on the above date, time, and location, the defendant did distribute 0,18 grams of an-off white in color rock
like substance consistent with that of Cocaine Base to. 2 confidentail informant (CI) wor kmg under the direction
and:control of the Charleston Poliee Department Narcotics Unitin exchange for a.sum of prerecorded US
Currency taken from the Offical Narcotics Fuud, Prior to the. transaction, the CI'was equipped with an
audio/video recording device and the entire transaction was recorded. The: Charleston Police Department
Forensic Division tested the off white in color rack like substazie to be-positive as 0.18 grams of Cocaine Base,
Tt:should be noted ihat the narcotics transaction did- octur within one half mile of CharlestonCatholic Schoeol at;

888 King St. Charleston, SC29403. 5

Thé ‘ab@.v'e_ is true-and believable based on the-observation and investigation ‘ongt Robertson, Inv. Shealy, Irv,
Grill, Inv. Sumner, kiv. Piecuch, Inv, Galhiceio, and SPO Léfromboise of the ity of Charleston Police
Department.

SWORN TO AND SURSCRIBED BEFORE ME =2 ///,/zm/
THIS 5D # DAY OF ‘ \wﬁv L2010 - AFFIANT
o | 180 Lockwood Blvd.
o _Charleston, SC.29403... -
/L o e . _ - 435S
- ear TN s
':._ATUREOFJU’ GE Lo\

COMPLAINT # 1001263
WAPJ?\:AJ‘]T# ;’[ - ‘-/ e §

CPD Form OT3

i %



. _ARREST WARRANT

_ K-343318

STATE OF SOUTH'CAHOLINA’

@:nunlyl DMunImpahly ol
——— CHARLESTOM. —

THE STATE
agafst

; BMBKENNEDY STREET, APT i}
__CHARLESTON,SC 29403

Phiare; —e——SSNq;
ey i 511 wemm Q

“Prosecufing Officer: SHEALY

Gifense: . DISTRIBUTION OF f‘OCAlNE BA_SB
: i Oﬂenss COdB
-Code/Ordinance’ Se: 4453375

Thls Warrent _Is CEHTIF!ED FOR SERVICE i the
Cnunlyl D Munlclpahly of

. . The accused

is ‘fo- .ba 'a'rreslb_d and brobght before tde 16 be

dealt with according o 1aws.

(-

“Signalire of Judga:

Date:.

RETUHN )
-A copy of 1hls arrest warrant d VGi’t.'d 1o
"datandanl féém H) k W

‘on

‘Slgnature of Conslabl Atottement Oftlcer. -

narunn.mnmm’-;‘ro: :

-STM'E ol SOUTH CAROLINA D)
cuup i/ Municlpality 4_3!_ )
CHARUESTON )

Pefsonally appearéd “belord! me. g
,bslng tluly iEwort deposes ‘and <sdys thdl
dd Wbl fhls. countly and  stafe on. JAN]
.S!ma pl -South c, il {or ordlnancs - of
In the | (oﬂowing panl ars:
nEsCRm:QN oF QI‘FENSE;

G- aftiack. TNV, JSHBALY | . . - Who
defendanl_SEN]QBmmq it e
Vicldté the -criminal: lﬁws o the

oumy/, Munlclpallly of CHARLESTON
DISTRIBUTION-OR'‘CQCAINE BASE

44-53375
| funtier °staté that there s probablei cause Yo balleval thal ‘the' dsfendait ‘namad -abiove: did  commit
‘Ihe. crimé s fofth.-and thet probablg cause Is: bassd on-the foliowing faots:

‘SBE ATTACHED AFFIDAVIT-

Slgnalura of Affaiit %
74 g{ﬁconnnwn

‘STATE OF_SdUTH-CAHOLINA } AﬂlanlsAddr ~“CHARLESTON, SC 29403=

Aﬂiéril"s'-Telephoha

XCounty? LI Munfelpalty of ) YIITIIAE
CHARLESTON b}

*ARREST WARHANT
TO ANY- U-*W ENFORCEMENT OFFICEH OF THIS-STATE OR MUNICIPALITY DR ANY-CONSTABLE.OF THIS COUNTY:

It appearn) iro o . ‘gbove Bifidavit thal Inere  are  femSonable .grolinds ‘to-
o FENOAKT 20,3010 ™ et ™ SENTORJENKINS .

bilieva: :that:

did violate-: The erlminal: laws: -of -thi-State ‘of Seulh-.Caroling {or ofdlinance of

(County/ DMunIclcamy of. CHARLBSTON  .0676t forth helovit
DESCRIPTION OF OFFENSE:

DISTRIBUTION OF COCAINE BASE

44-53-375
-Having foung Jurobable -éausé and the above affiant havlng $viom bafore:nie; you aro ampoiwared and-direciad io-arrest the- said
de!endant and bring him or.het hefors me forthwitlt to be dealt wili-according™ts law, A copy:of Ihis.AtrestWarrsnt- -shall be‘Hslivered-to
at The {ime of its gxacullon, of as soon thereafier as- Is practicable, o

Swom (cr nnd <. wibﬁzg? % l 0 )

Judge's Addréss 1720 SAMRITTENBERGBLVD.

‘CHARLESTON, 8C 29407 ..

._lute af l-;sulng idgd N\, ) Judge's Telephene:.. 437666531 - .
-Judge Code::_-5527/simik. {s5uing. Court: -Maglslrule D.MUnldpul- [ L

‘onG.u@:AL
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) IN'THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS
COUNTY.OF Ghaleston ) o
‘STATE VS, ) INDICIMENTICASEH: 2010051003225
SENIOR JENKINS -y AWE_R343310 _
ARAT - )  Datoof Offense: _1/205010
Race: B Sex: M Age: 35 3 SCCode § 44-‘33-0445(13)(2)
: 9S§#: ) CDR Code #: 0108
;- 5C-294030000 ) SENTENCE SHEET
3]

s(] Ne[ ] CMVYesD Nol:] HaZmatYeslj No[] .
[XIPLEADS.

In dtsposmon of the said indictitient comes now the Defendant who vas [] CONVICTEDQF or

TO: PWID/Dist. Cocame Base in waumty of‘ School _ . v

ii. violation of § 44-53- -0445(B)(2) of the-8.C. Code:of Laws, bearmg CDR.Code # 0108

[X] NON-VIOLENT [] VIOLENT [X|SERIOUS [IMOST SERIOUS: [1Mandatory CPS(C‘}C D‘_gjﬂgg 545

o ) ‘w/minor 1st-or Lewd. Act)
Z].As Indicted, "[]Lesser Included Offense, [JDeféndant Waives Presentment to Grand Jury,
houit: Neg,ouauons o Recommendat; Bh; L} Negotrated Sentence, [] ,

Attome f for Deibndant b

The chat’ge isi.

it's inditials)
ommendatmn by the State.

Cmmty Detentlem Center,

WHEREFORE the Defendant is comm:ted to-the: 1 Biate: Depm'tment of: Correctmms, )

for a determiinate tari of days\tmeﬁﬁrs/{ Q or  {7] underifie Youthful Gtfender Actt not'o exceed years
and/or to pay-a fine of $ i pxowded that upon the strvice of days/momhe/years and/or paymerit:
of§ - s plus Costs:and assessments &g applicable®; the balance is Suspended thh probiation for

months/years and siibject to Soutli Carolina Depertinsnt of P obntron,
propation; which ate ‘incorporatéd By referénce.

‘Bl LONCURRENT or J CONSECUT.[VE to séntence on: ,
" The Defendantis to be.given credit for tittie: sewed putsnaiit fo §.C, Coda
by theState ‘Department af Corréctions.

[] The Defendarit'is to be placed: on-thie Central Registry of Child Abuse and’ Neglect pursuant to 5;C. Code §17:25-135.

Parole.and Pardon Services standard .condiffons.of

B § 24-13:40 10 be calculated and applied .

‘Pursudnt to 18'U.S.C Section 922,it is unlawil for & DPerson:convicted of a vialation of Section 16-25:20 or 16-25-68 (Crlminaf * f
Doniestic Violence ) to shlp,transportgpossws,ox' redetve afirenrnt or ammunitios, .

S SPECIAL CONDITIONS:
““‘*ERESTITUTION'“—E]‘Dcferrcd T Dieg: Waives: Henrlng——.Ordered —PTUP—— - -
Total - E,—'ﬂPLus 20% tee'i_ o - daysfhours Public Setvice Fmployment
Payimeént Terms: st S ; by .Qbmm GED '
Dy-9CDPPPY ‘ o 5 AttendVoc Rehab or Job Corp

: Y Za =T NP g :"".’May serve. W/E begining ' 2
il;_qxpwnt__. - _ DEPUTY CLERK$ Substace Abuse Coiingeling - [
LIne .
§14-1:206 (Assessments 107.5 %) $ Rendom Drug/Aleohol tting [ »

4131 TCAY 1} (Coi, Surchis _ — Fine may be; ipd, m equal -consecitive: weekly/monthly
§14-T-211(AY(1) (Coitv, Surchiaege) S0 8 JOOLAT  misofs beginning
§14 i-2ll(A)(2)(DUI Surcherge) $100 $ 3 . paid to Public Defender F
§ 56-5-2995 (DUI Assesiméne) $12 7% B .(;t,h, — paid toPublic Defen Mmﬁ
§ 56-1-286 (BUI Breath Tesi) 25~ £l K
§47 12;(Pubhc Dcf/Prob) $500—- -
14 : Funding) LT 7, s - : —
“oust Surchaxge) 30 s A 0,000 ' —
6 50-21- 1!4(BUI Breath Tést Foe) $50. g , .
§ 56-5:2942(0) (Vohicle Assesament). $40/ea " g [0 Appointed PD ot appomted other counisel
§ 907 (SECIA Surchaigs) 53 Son 347 A2 1egulres $500 be paid to Clerk[ _
%10 County (xi‘paldmmstallments) & f?[) uring probatior. i
TOTAL ) : (" N7 T o -
ClerkoECourt/ Deputy.Clerk ) : . g:;:igfd?dge has ’L 7 ‘ .
Court Reporter: My Jarrdn” Sentence Date: {(pl{0{n" ™
1

.§CCA[217 {11/2009)



sfBomonss . pocxerno. 2010GS1003225

WITNESSES ) )
_ The State of Soiith Caiolina
_Charleston City Police Departinent County of Charlesion

AGENCY CASE NUMBER'* ~ COURTOFGENERAL SESSIONS

1001125

May Term 2910

cm—
—_— o e o

ARREST WARRANT NUMBER

oy cksmary

K343319 A 10 120 022)

FILED

6/2/20105:30:08:PM
JULIE J: ARMSTRONG
CLERK OF COURF

THE STATE
‘DATE OF ARREST
S VS:. Ae
March 5, 2010 o .
3 SENIOR JENKINS
po2: 195
B/
) _E -
o 4 ——
jF;’,";fe.’.fo” of Grand Juryr WAY ¥ o 2000 Indietwent for
i - i . Distribution of' Cocajne Base within.
VFBDIG ) ) Proximify of a:School
Foreperson of PelitJuy- Dae: R B ot
INDICT
&




STATE.OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) : INDICTMENT

COUNTY OF CHARLESTON )

Ata Court of General Sessions, convened-on May 10, 2010 the Grand. Jurors: of Charleston County present
Iipon their ¢ath;

79

‘Bistiibution-of Cocaine-Base within-Proximity-of
e e e = &

That in Charleston County, :South Carolina, on or about Janyary 20, 20190, the . Defendanit, SENIOR * JENKINS,
unlawfully did pessess Witli intent-to djsmbule  distribuge, dispensg, sell, putchase, or marifacture, a- quantity of:
Cacaing Base within a one-ha)f mile radjus of the grounds of Charleston Catholic. School logated-at'88s" I(mg Srreet,

all in viglalion of Section 44-53-345 of e South:Caroling Code.of Laws (1976) as-amended:.

Against the pedce.and dignity-of the State; and contrary:to the gtatute in such case made and provided.
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< ARREST WARRANT

. K-=343319
“ " STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA-

D{Counlyl I:]Munlclpallty ol.

CHAR wqmn

-'rHr-: STATE
agdinst

SENIOR JENKINS.

}xd&rg_s_slﬂ\Kg«NRXstEDY STREET, APT
TON, SC 29403
Phieng: . SSN;

séxM._ Race: . B Height: EDY Welght: 0

DL-Slate! DL# .
'DoB;_-.lﬂi_-_.._'-Agéncy ORIZ -
Prosaeuting Agency: - CrD

Prosecuing-Officor: SHEALY
Qifsnse:. _LB_U_TLQM)E__OQM_
mmobﬂenss Coder__

CudelOrdInance Sec, 44-53-445

This Warant ‘|5 CERTIFIED "FOR SERVICI‘ in the

| County/* DMunchpaII(y of

Is 1o be -arrgsled and brought beféle mé to be
daalf with.according to.daw,

The accused.

_ls_gln'sor SQUTHGARDLINA ). N
BFF DAV T
Counf Munlcn allfy of J Bl i
vt o 3
Parsonuilly apgdaid  befefe e, The ‘aMfient INV.T SHEALY o _ e

being ’duly aworn fdeposes  and. says  that deféndanl ..

dd within_ Wis counly ‘ail slkalé nn_._JANHARX.ZQ,.ZQlO___ vidla®® 1he -cfimiial hds of the

State: o} Sloulh Caralina. {or. ordinance o!BcounryID Munlclpahly o(___ﬂ_______...___c ARLESTGN )
In the following. pan!culars
HEACRIPTION OF FFENSE: DISTRIBUTION OF COCAINE BASE CLOSE:

PROXCTOA SCHOOL,  44-53-445
| further state that there 13 probable ‘éause ‘to Dalleve that the: defendant: named. above did .comiful
the cifme s6f forth and (al prébable’ cause Is based on 1he Tollowing facle:

SEE: ATTACHED AFFIDAVIT

Slgnaldre of Aflidmt

STATEOF s[g—x%i-l CAMGLINA: ) ; :
Sounty/ Muricipaliy, of ) At 843.5'1 ].7434
‘LLESTON 3 Alflant's Talephone

- {Ls)
Signature of Judgs i
Dile:
] T RETURK
A copy -of ihis ‘arres{-werrant,, elivered to
defondant. ' pamry l‘
on s
.s;gngture%w_uib!e‘ rEnforcement Officer
. - = o
RETURN WARRANT TO!

G gna‘uta oflssulng udci g

ARREST WAHRANT
TO ANY LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFlCER OFTHIS STATE OR FAUNICIPALIFY oR: ANY. CONSTABLE OF THIS COUNTY N
It apfedring ‘from ‘tha  dbova. affidavit lhat thefe ‘are- reaconabls grounds -to”  balleve. that
ANUARY 20,2010 delendant SENIOR JENKINS
did violale he criminal laws of tho Sfals-of South Carolind {or ordinance, of
Countyl- L JMunieinnfty of —. — CHARLESTON ) as.sel forth belpw:
DESCHIP"ION OF OFrbNSE

Dlsmm@nbﬂ OF COCAINE BASE CLOSE
PROXTO'A SCHOOL, 44-53-443 by
Havlng {ound probeblé causa and the, abova affiant having:swom belore ms, you are: empowéred and dirested to-armést lhs sald

delahdani-end bring T oF ier befard i fortwith-1o be deall-with accarding fo faw. A copy-of this Atiest Warrant shall be- delivared to
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Charleston Police Department
* STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA |

COUNTY OF CHARLESTON  AFFIDAVIT
Personally appear before me, a magistrate of this county one, Inv. I Shealy,

Wh§~fﬁrsf"being duly swern-deposed-and says that, ' Senior Jenkins,

di&within this county and state on the 20 January 2010 violate the criminal laws of the State of Seuth

Carolina in the following particular:
DESCRIPTION OF OFFENSE

Distribution of Cocaine Base Close Prox, tod School
44-53-445
X

“The affiant states there 1§ piobable.cdlise to believé that the defendant named-did commitithe erime-set forth
and: that such probablé canseis based on the following facts:

That ofi Jativary 20,2010 at approxunately 1407hrs., while in the area of Senate St. .and Strawberry L., which
" isTocated in the:City and Gounty of Charleston Soutb Clarolina 29403, the above named defendant: (Semor

J enkms) did knowingly, willingly, and unlawfully violate:South Carolina Statute (44-53-445). D1str1but10n of

Cécame Base Close Prox. to # School in the following iianner:

Tﬁt on the above date, fime, and location, the defendant.did distribute 0,10 grams of an m‘f whxte i color rock
like substance consistent with thatof Cocaine Baseta & confidentail informant(CI) working: under the direction
arid,control of the Charleston Polite Departmienit Narcotics: Unit i exchange for a.sum of prerecorded US
Glrrency taken from: the Offical Narcotics Fund. Prior to-the transaction, the €I was equipped ith an
dudio/video tecor ding device.and the entire transaction was recorded. The.Charleston’ Police Department
Forensic Division tested the:off white in color rock like substatice:to:bé pasitive as 0.10 grams of Coedine Base.
1t should be noted that the narcotics transaction did occur within one half mile of Charleston Catholie ‘School: at”

88% ng St, Charlgston, 8C 294073,

Tﬁg above is trite-anid believable based on thérobservation and fvestigation of Sgt. Robertson, Inv. Shealy, Inv.
Grill, Tov. Sumner, Inv. Piecuch, Inv. Galluceio, and Sgt. Lites of the. City of Chatleston Police Department.

SWORN TO AND SUBSCRIBED BEFORE ME

THIS S %L DAY OF Mmﬂl@ 2010 # AFFIANT

L \ 180 Lockwogd Blvd.

A ; T -, Chapleston, 8C 29403 -
(A o,  po=mfN 'ﬂ({/ I _ Q435779434 A

SIGNATURE OF JUDGE I AN

COMPLAINT #: 1001125
WARRANT# | - 443314
CPD l?mm OT’5

’ : ]



83

STATE OF SOUTH. CAROLINA ) INTHE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS
COUNTY OF __  Charleston ~§ | o
STATE T T VE 3 INDICTMENT/CASE# __. 2010651003230
. SENTOR JENKINS ) AW K433
AKA: _. . , . )  Dase of Offense: -, 1/2_'2_!:29’1'50" e
Race: B Sex: M Age: 35 y  SC.Code § - 44-53-0445E)2)
os TS s ) concor o
g RLEST 1294030000 ‘) SENTENCE SHEETY
CDL Yes[] No[] CMVYes[] No[J Hazmat Yes[] No[] o o
In-disposition-of the:said indictrent comes now the.Défepdant who was [0 CONVICTED.OF or XIPLEADS
TO: PWID/Dist. Cocaine Base.iri. Proximity of School: _
in violation of § 44-53-0445(B)Y(2) of" theo (, C(nde of Laws; bearing COR Code# 0108 .
X] NON-VIOLENT. {0 VIOLENT [X]SERIOCUS  [JMOS TSERIQUS  [Manditory GPS(CSE ~ [J§17-2545
wiinor 18t of Lewd Act) _
The charge is: [X]As[nd:cted [ Lesser Inclyded Olfenss; []DefendantWalves Piresentment o Grand Juty. _ (defendant'siinitials)

lthout Negotuauonq or Recommendatton ['_'_] Negotiated Sentence,

[:1 Rec giimendstion by the State,

WHZEREFORE the.Defendant is comm:ted tothe [ 1A deite Depurtment of Corx'eetmns, E] %ou:nty Deteiition, Center,

fora determinalc term of S : (] under the “Youthfuk Offender AéY Dot to-excéed yesrs
and/or to pay a'fine.of § ' : provnded that: upon the service of ‘ days/momhs/years andlor payment

‘ot i plus-costs: and aqsessments as applicable?; the balnnce i§ suspendcd with probation for:

:months/yearé and subject to Souith.Carolina Department of Probation, Paroleand Pardon Services standard. conditiongof

probation, which are incorporated by reference,

[D/ NCURRENT or [[] CONSECUTIVE to sentence on: i
‘The Defendant:is to be given.credif for time served pursuant.to'S.C, Code- B 24-13-40 to bé caléalated and applied:

by the State. Department of Carrections:.

[J The Defendant s to be placed on:the. Central Regisiry of Child Abuse and Neglect pursuant £ 5:C. Code §17:25-135;

Pursunnt to 18 U.5.C Section 922,it is untawful for a person convicted of a violation of Stetion 16-25-20 or 16:25-65 (Criniinal
Dnmestxc Viclence ) to-ship,tv ansport;possess,or vecsive a firearm or ammunifion,:
SH?]B.CIAL COINDHTEONS'

- [;]ggsnwrrom,:e T Daserrar L It PTUP :
Total: °$ , . Blus o015 o _ days/hiurs: Pubhc Service. Employment
Payinent Tetms: - Obtam GED

-1 Serby sCoPPPS < =< A ttend Voo, Reliab, or Job Cor P,

May serve W/E begining

?;;"_il?iem‘ T Substance Abuse Counseling [ A
*Fine; _% :
o . Random Drug/Alcoho1 iesting :
. - . . ’ p . )
914.__1 206 .(As.s?ssmem.m‘?'s' 'A’); , 3 — - Fine tnay bepd. in squal, cosecutive Weekly/mon&ﬂy
§ 14-1-2L1(AX1) (Conv. Surcharge) $@00 8 SO0 0G0 pmisof$ .. begining.
§14-1-211(A)2) (DUT Surcheigs) $10 5 | 5
§ 56:5:2905 (DUI Assessiment) $1275 o paid Pubmefe"derp“"d (
§ 56-1-286-(DUJ Breath Test) 2575 "
§ 47:12:(Public DeffPrch) 5005~
141212 (Law Enforce, Funding) 32 s 25,060
———§-14:4-213-(Prug-Coust-Surcharige). 2 (U — 7 Yo WA
-8 50-21-114(BUI Breath ‘Test Foc) %0 ¢
8§ 56-5-2942(1) (Vehicle Assessient) $40/ea ~§ v Lj Appointéd PD-or appoinied other counsél,
-§ 90.7 (SCCIA Sisicharge) 35 % = 00 chu?;,nlz Iegultres $500 be pa:d to Clerk
8%t County  (if paid in'installmeiits) s £ .90 '8 prObaton.
TOTAL ¥, 288,90 .
- ) e 28 S o ‘ Presiding Judgé |
- Clerk of Court/ Deputy: Clerk ///Z/L"/ Tudge Cfd; iaN!
“Court Reporter; e Sentence Date:

SCCA/217 (11/2009)



@.QMW ‘ e pockerno. 2010GS10603230

I

WITNESSES
The State of South Carelina
Charleston City Police Department County of Charleston
AGENCY CASE NUMBER CQURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS
1001263
May Term 2010 X
ARREST WARRANT NUMBER R
)
K343322 o 120
THE STATRE
BATE OF ARREST
V8.
Mal'gll_é, 201_0 o
Y . F SENEOR JENIENS
G
ACTION OF GRAND JY ] DOBR: 1975.-
el BM
L T TRy
w f oo
vt - .
Foreperson of Grand Jury HAY 10 2010 . Indictment for
Date: | q
Distribution of Cocaine Base within
V,ERD[CT ' Proximity of a School
Fi?reperson of Petit Jury Date: S e e

WDICT

FILED

6/2/2010 5:30:09 PM
JULIE J. ARMSTRONG
GLERK OF COURT




STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) INDICTMENT

COUNTY OF CHARLESTON ) '

At a Court of General Sessions, convened on May 10, 2010 the Grand Jurors of Charleston County present
upon their oath;

85

Bistribution-of Cocaine Base within-Proximity-of-a-Schook

That in Charfeston County, South Carolina, on or aboui Janvary 22, 2010, the Defendant, SENIOR JENKINS,
unlawfully did possess with intent to distribute, distribute, dispense, sell, purchase, or manufacture, a quantity of
Cocaine Base within a one-half mile radius of the grounds of Chatleston Catliolic School located at 888 King Street,

all in violation of Section 44-53-445 of the South Carolina Cods of Laws (1976) as amended.”

Against the peace and dignity of the State, and contrary to the statute in such case made and provided.

lendn

STEPMANIE B. LINDER
ASSISTANT SOLICITOR
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ARREST WARRANT

K- 343322

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

[j‘:ounlyl DMunlc!pallty of

CHARLESTON

THE STATE
agalnst

ﬁmOR JENKINS
Address:. IIISENNEDY STREET, FT.

CHARLESTON, SC 29403

Phon® e S?N:
Sex:M_ Race! __[_i Helght: 311 Welght: 0
DL State; DL#

o0B: 1975 R AL —

Prosecuting Agancy: = -
Prosecuﬂnglglﬁcsr: ____M__—
Offanse: . DISTRIBUTION OF COCAINE BASE
CLOSE PROX SCHOObense Cade:
Cods/Ordinance Sec: _44:33-445

Thls Warrant Is CEBTIFIED FOR SERVICE In the
County/ DMunIcfpaIity of

. Ths acousad

Is to be aresled end braght befera rme lo bs

deelt with according to faw.

ws)

Signatusa of Judga

Date:

RETURN
A copy of thls amest_warrant wos qrrlivo'-'ed 3_ ’
delendant : S8 | fenene N ealidvy
on - RS/ .

=5 )

Signature oféZ fforcement Oficer

//
RETURN {mnnm}é(’
i L '

1 provod by
STATE OF SQUTH CAROLINA ) méaanaml
[:ECoum/ Munlgipallity of ) AFFID A.‘! | I. 1 A S
GERLESRON” PR :
Personally appsared bhefore nmie  ths  alfiant ' < TINV. J. SHEALY who

being duly sworn deposes and saya thal defendant SENIOR JENKINS
0

did within this county and stale on. JEMH&Y_ZZ,% ]lo_..._...__.___ violale the cdminal laws of the
State of Soulk Carolina [or ordinance nfleounryl Municipality of CHARLESTON }

in the following parliculars:

DISTRIBUTION OF COCAINE BASE CLOSE
DESGRIPTION OF OFFENSE:
PROXTO A SCHOOL 44-53-445
I furlher state Whal thers Is probable cause lo believs thal the defendant named above did commit
the crimme set forth and that probable causs Is based on the folflowing facis:

SEE ATTACHED AFFIDAVIT

Signature of Affiant J /
- ALl e ﬁg/%{wmmw

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA } Affiant's f’ﬂ“’ss—c SN SC RS
County/ L__]Murdr.lpallb/ of ) Atllant's Tolenhone BRSO I-1333
CHARLESTON ) P

ARREST WARRANT .
TO ANY LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICER OF THIS STATE OR MUNICIPALITY OR ANY CONSTABLE OF THIS COUNTY:
It appegrin from 1t above  affidavit that there  are  feasonable grounds lo  belleve  that
PR AR 20, 3510 SBNIOR JENKIN

Y 22v defendant i} 5
did viclate the criminal taws of the State of South Carolina (or ordinance of .
ounly/ Municiulity of CHARIEBSTON ) &s sot farth belov:

DESCRIPTION OF OFFFENSE:

DISTRIBUTION OF COCAINE BASE CLOSE
PROX TO A SCHOOL  44-53-445

Having lound probable cause sad the above zfflant having swarn before mw, you are empowsred and direclad to arrest the sald
defendant and bring him or hor efore. me foithwith Yo be dealt with accerding fo law. A copy of this Amest Wanrant shall be delivered to
the dafendant at the time of s exscution, or as sdon tharealter as {s praciicabie,

Z\Ivnn/ll}; and suim?btﬂugi Qﬁ 10

)

1720 SAM RITTENBERG BLVD,
Judge's Addl 5
[y | et CHARLESTON, 5C 29407
} Judge's Telephone }34*-766-6531 )
Issuing Court: [ﬁ Maglstrate ’ D Muhlelpal D Clreutt

Signaiire of Issulrg Judgn
Judge Code:__562%/smh

CRUGINAL .
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Charleston Police Department
* STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

COUNTY OF CHARLESTON AFFIDAVIT
Personally appear before me, a magistrate of this county one, Inv.J. Shealy,
who first being duly sworn deposed and says that, Senior Jenkins,

did within this county and state on the 22 January 2010 violate the criminal laws of the State of South

. Carolina in the following particular:
DESCRIPTION OF OFFENSE

Distribution of Cocaine Base Close Prox, 1o a School
44.83.445

The affiant states there is probable cause to believe that the defendant named did commit the crime set forth
and that such probable cause is based on the following facts:

That on January 22, 2010 at approximately 1615hrs., while in the area of Senate St. and Strawberry Ln., which
is Jocated in the City and County of Charleston South Carolina 29403, the above named defendant (Senior
"Tenkms) did knowingly, willingly, and unlawfully violate South Carolina Statute (44-53-445) Distribution of
..Cocame Base Close Prox. to a School in the following manner:

'-Phat on the above date, time, and location, the defendant did distribute 0.18 grams of an off white in color rock
“hlce substance consistent with that of Cocaine Base to 2 confidentail informant (CI) working under the direction
_and control of the Charleston Police Department Narcotics Unit in exchange for a sum of prerecorded US

% Curfency taken from the Offical Narcotics Fund. Prior to the transaction, the CI was equipped with an
saudio/video recording device and the entire transaction was recorded. The Charleston Police Department
Foxensm Division tested the off white in color rock like substance to be positive as 0,18 grams of Cocaine Base.
It should be noted that the narcotics transaction did occur within one half mile of Charleston Catholic School at
888 King St, Charleston, SC 29403.

"The above is true and believable based on the observation and investipation of Sgt. Robertson, Inv. Shealy, Inv.
Grill, Inv. Sumner, Inv. Piecuch, Inv. Galluccio, und SPO Lafromboise of the City of Charleston Police

Department.
] t
SWORN TO AND SUBSCRIBED BEFORE ME e e
THIS S DAY OF WYLM S , 2010 AFFIAN
b 180 Lockwood Blvd.
' Charleston, SC 29403
| oo 843-577-7434

)
=7/ A (L8

SIGNATURE OF TUDGE \

COMPLAINT# ;.001263
WARRANT# (- 39 NET.

CPD Form OT"



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )
COUNTY OF Charleston g
STATE A VS. )

SENIOR JENKINS )
AKA: )
Race: B _ Sext M Age: 35 -)
DOB: 1975 SSH: )
Address: NNEDY STRER )
City,State,Zin: ARLESTON, SC 294030000 )
DL#: ST )

*CDL Yes[] No[] CMYV Yes[] No[] Hazmat Yes[] No[]

IN THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS

89

INDICTMENT/CASE#:

A/W#  K343323
Date of Offense: _1/22/2019
S.C.Code § : _44-53-0375 (B) (1)

CDR Code#: _ 3014

2010G31003231

SENTENCE SHEET

In disposition of the said indictment comes now the Defenclant who was [] CONVICTED OF or XIPLEADS

TO: PWID/Dist/Mfy Cocaine Base or Meth, 1st Offense

inviolation of § 44-53-0375 B) (1) of the 8.C. Code of Laws, bearing CDR Code # 3014

X] NON-VIOLENT [] VIOLENT [ISERTOUS [JMOST SERICUS [ 1Mandatory GPS(CSC (1817-25-45

The chargeis:  [X] As Indicted, [ T.esser Included Offense,

pleais:  [X]Without Negotiations or Recomtnendation,

Ann el

[ Defendant Waives Presentment to Grand Jury,
[J Negotiated Sentence,

Y25 YR

w/minor 1st or Lewd Act)
(defendent's initials)
[0 Recommendation by the State.

[ Wemelrrw | Pl

st as-mmtsuary,

SCBart

der, St¢phanie B.

[) under the Youthful Offender Act not to excesd
; providedfiat upen the service of

and/or to pay a fine of §
of §

—_—

J Cgé'ﬁdant

Y2
WHEREFORE, the Defendant. is commited to the T_1.8ttite Department of Corrections, [] County Detention Center,
for a determinate term of _ C 0nda§"sfmnﬁm'/§/€a\rs r

_ plus costs and assessments as applicable®; the balance is suspended wiih probation for

Atiornsy for Defendant SC Bar#
Sely/

"
years

days/months/years and/or payment

nfonfhs/year_s and subject to South Caroling Department.of Probation, Parole and Pardon Servicen standard conditions of

projlion, which are incorporated by reference.
SONCURRENT or [l CONSECUTIVE to sentencs on:

} The Defendant is to be given credit for time served pursuant to 8.C. Code

by the State Department of Cortrections,

" 8§ 24-13-40 to be calenlated and applied

L_.J The De_,fendam is to be placed on the Central Registry of Child Abase and Neglect pursuant to 8.C. Code §17-25-135,

Pursuant tq' 18 U.8.C Sectlon ¥22,it is unlawiul for g ersau couvisted of u violation of Section 16-25-20 o £6-245-65 (Crimingl
Domestic Violenee ) to ship,transport,possess,or veceive 8 firenrm or ammunition.”

CJRESTITUTION: [ Beferred [ Der, walves Hearing
Total:. § , plus 20% fee; $
Payinent Terms; '
[0 Set by SCDPPPS

[7] Ordered

Recipient; .
*Fine: ' .

§ 14-1-206 (Asscssments 107.5 %) $
g 14-1:211¢4)(1) (Conv. 3uwrcharge) $100 _§ ¢9¢s "5:‘4‘):

§14-121{(A)(2) (DUI Swrcinargy) $100° §
§ 56-5-2995 (DU! Assessment) $127% T
§ 56-1-286 (DUI Breath Test) $25°g
§ 47.12 (Public Def/Prob) $s00 3

" BPECIAL CONDITIONS:

PTUP
Obiain GED

Attend Voc, Rehab. or Job Corp,
May serve W/E begining
Substance Abuse Counseling O
Random Drug/Alesho! testing

Fine may be pd. iri equal, consscutive weekly/monthly

days/hours Public Service Employment

&

pmis. of $ beginning
8 paid to Public Defender Fund
Cter: :

§ 14+1-212 (Law Enforce. Funding) $25 7 me [®)
——814:0.213 (Dog Conpt Surcharge) $100 - ']'r?%"m?‘s_

§ 50-31-114(BUI Breath Test Fes) $50 w5 .

§ 56-5-2942(J) (Vehicle Assossment) $40/ca g T ] {\ppoinmd PD or appointed cther counsel,
§ 9017 (SCCIA Surcharge) 35 & 5.00) 8 47.12 requires §500 ?e paid to Cler
3%to County (if paid in instaliments) during probation, /

3 £.90

TOTAL . _§_m=l 3}@
Cletk of Court/ Deputy Clerk /// e
Coust Reporter; A, 1e ﬁq_}j{ - : -

SCCA217 (11/2009)

Presiding Judge
Judge Code:
Seatence Daie;

IS0,
J laIHD'[[O \




90 :ARREST WARRANT
K- 343323

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

Ijﬁountyl DMunldpallly of

CHARLESTON

THE STATE
agalnst

SENIOR JENKINS

Fhone; . SSN:

sax™M_ Race:_BHeight: 91 weighy, 140
DL State: DL#
Dos: —i]'_97_5___ Aguncy OR1#:

P ing Agency: QIP —

Prosecuting Officer: SHEALY

Offanse; __PDISTRIBUTION QF {COCAINE BASE
(_“!iguse Code:
Code/Ordinanca Sect 44-53-375

This Warrant Is CERTIFIED FOR SERVICE in (he
County/ l:]Municipalityof

. The accused

Is to be armesled and orughl befcre re fo he

dealt with accordiing la law

(L.S.)
Sighaiure of Judoe
Date:
AETUAM
A copy of {his arrsst,wal[.nnl s ce.‘iversd o
delondant ear X S fact
on rE- e

% e, —
SlgnaturG ol Constakie/la? Enforcemant Officer
,",‘)

FETURN WARRANT TO:

ST{\TE OF S0UTH CARGLINA
'Counl-lE;,%Mm\ld ality of )
F P %&‘{1 )

Address: ILSENNEDY STREET, APT
TON, 3C 29403

Porsonally appeated hefore me the affianl who
baing duly swom doooses end says thal dfendant_ SENIOR JENKINS .

did withln this county and state on_JANAURY 22 3010 vlula!e) the criminal laws of the
State of Soulh Carolina (or ordinance ciL—X Coup(y/D Munlcipality of_ CEARLESTON )

in fhe follewing parifenlers:

Ao ot " DISTRIBUTION OF COCAINE BASE

44-53-375
| futher Blate that there s prabible cause to belleve that the defendant named ebove did commit
the crims st forth and thal probabie caute Is based on the following facls:

SEE ATTACHED AFFIDAVIT

Signature of Afflanl _=g=mr” / %:./‘ ]
Dect S Za W Ll MO 2 3 s
PRI PTCIPTA N ~—y = = 1 0 E) r;.)D DRI’VE!

STATE OF SGUTH CAROLINA ) Alfants A eSS —— T ARCRSTOR], ST 2003
County/ D Muritdealiy of } 83325777938
;

CHARLESTON Afifant's Telephone

ARREST WARRANT
TO ARY LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICER OF THIS STATE OH PAUNICIPALITY OF GNY CONSTABLE OF THIS COUNTY:

B appearin irotn, the  above affidavit that thera _ are  reasonable grounds to  believe that
TANUARY 22,2010 " oiondant SENIOR JENKINS

did Viclals the oiminai iaws of the State of South Carofina (or crdinance of

.:gcount;ﬂ [__]mun»:ipn!'(-,- of CHARIEBSTON ) as set forth below:
DESCRIPTION OF OFFENSE:

DISTRIBUTION OF COCAINE BASE
44-53-375

Havlng found probabla cauae and the abava afflant having swom beforo me, you are empowered and clrected 10 arrest the sald
dafendant ar ¢ bring him of 121 2efore nie forthwith 1o be dealt with according ta taw. 2. copy of this Arrest Warrant shall ba dalivered to
iha dafendars at the tirr o #a axecullon, ar 15 8oun diereaiter as 15 piacthuable,

)

oveisigigas e )
"NAAEY ) L Y )
Blgnatues o Jssuing J‘_'(Igl.:—' 2 ) Judge’s Talepitne . 437656831
Judge Code:._ S84 /rmh 4:-‘{”") lssulng Court: I:ﬁ Magistrate D Municlpal D Circut

CHIGINAL !




' . » 9 1 2
V WITNESSZS Ve ?
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‘STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ). N THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS
COUNTY OF Charléston )
STATE S vs ) INDICTMENT/CASE#: 2010681003231
. SENIOR JENKINS § AW _K34333 | |
ARA: . .y DatofOffense: _1/22/2010
Rece! B Sex: ) Age 35y SCCode 81 44-530375.(B)(1) _
poB: [-1975 5t )  CDRCodei: _ 3014
Address;: JJKENNEDY 3 ~
City,State,Zip: CH b} SENTENCE SHEET
DL#: ) o
*CDL Yes[] Nol___'] CMV Yes[] Mo[| Hazmat Yes|] NoEl » -
In disposition of the said indictmerit comes flow the Defendant who was [] CONVICTEDOF or RPLEADS
TO: PWID/Dtst/Mfg Cocame Base.or Meth, (st Offense _
in violation of  § 44—53 0375 (B)-(1) . . _of the'8.C. Code of Laws, bearing COR Code # 3014 B
X NON-VIOLENT™ ~ [] VIOLENT DSERIOUS [IMOST SERIOUS ~ []Mandatory GPS(CSC T [FI817-25-45
" w/mifor 1st ar Lewd Act). o
The chm‘ge s [(X]AS Indicted, []lesserIncluded Offense, DDeFondanLWmveq Pregentmentto'Grand Jury: ~ (defendait's fiitials)
( . EIwithout ‘Negotintions or Recommendatlon, [] Negotiated. Sentence, [ Recommendanon by the: State.
AV YL ' £ Wt Pl
A nder, St phame B, .SC Bar# -Atterndy for Def‘endant ‘SC Barit
») OISy,
WHEREFORE ilie Deferidant i is o mited to the 1;]/3 te Depariment of Cericections, I] County Detention Ceneer,
fora d'etermmate térin-of: : g:a?v O under the: Youthfil: OffenderAct nof to exceed  ~ years
and/or to faydfineof§ _ -~ ; provi at upon the setvice of , __ days/months/years and/or payment
of § i ; plus costs and as.,eSE.ments as. apphcabl ; the balance is suspended with probatien for

_months/years and subject to South Cardlina Department:of Prabation, Parole:and Pardon Services standard ccmdmons of
;pro ation, Wthh are.incorporated by refererice:

[ NCURRENT or O CONSECUTIVE to sentenceom; o ' _ o :
/The Defendatit. is to be: given credit for time served pursuanito 5.C. Code § 24-13-40 to be calculated and applied
by thie Stgte Department of Corvections. '

[1 The Defendantn to-be placed on the Central Registry of Child s\buse and Neglect pursuant to 8.C, Code §17-25-135,

Pm‘suant to 18 U.8.C Section 922itis uniawiul for a person couvicted of o vivlation of Section 16-25-20 or 16—25 65 (Criminal
Domestlc Violence ) to ship,tramsport,possess;or: veeelve = firearm or amwunition.” 5

SPECIAL CONDITIONS:
DRESTITUTION [ Defeived ] Def, Waives Honrlng '[] ordered  PTUP
Total: §. plus 20% qg_ .

R A - days/hours Public:Service Employment
L Obtain GED [

. Attend Voc. Rehab. or Job Corp
May serve W/E begining

Payment Terms: _
[] Setby-SCDPPPS

Eﬁf?iﬁiéﬁ?i _ v - Substance Abuse Counseling ~ -[J
*Fine: ] -
S = Random Drug/Alcoho! sesting . [7]

§ !f‘"’zos (Assw‘s"fef“s"'l:°7i§ %) o $ : - Fine may be pd: in equal, consecntive weekly/monthly

§ {4-1-211(A)(1) (Conv. Surchatge} 100 ¥ i ‘pmts: of $ begmmng

§14-1-21 1{A)(2) (DUL Suichargc). sl § BN i

§ 56-5-2995 (DUI Assessment) -$-}2 R ‘ O%‘i—_—r“ paid to P_ubhc Defender. Fund -

§ 56-1-286 (DUI Breath Test) $25 g e

§ 47.12(Public Def/Prob). $500 —g— i
. g 1341 -2]2(Law Enfomc Fundmg}......... $2~5_~_$_ZS;G)@ " -

x§ 1 AL1.092 N $100 ¢ W ERTAN W e
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§ 907 (SCCIA Suréharge) 5 5 S.Q0 2;17“12 ’;ig‘;gﬁf, $50°7e paid to Cley
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=0t STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS -
' COUNTY OF CHARLESTON ) FOR THE NINTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
Senior Jenkins, #341212, ) Case No.: 2015-CP-10-2152
) ) ("’ vo‘:‘ (\s_"
3 é/ <N
Applicant, ) @, /% '4:;.,
: ) ORDER OF DISMISSAL c}(,\_‘cg\ ‘%1 Y -
V. ) r/\) L ‘% (:'{',
) ,’; - e 0 ‘::'_a
* State of South Carolina, ) 9.«'7_;'; _ ‘{;J
Respondent. ) ey,
. ) Pl '1_'

This matter comes before the Court by way of an application for pqst—conviction relief
filed April 13, 2015, by Senior Jenkins (Applicant). Respondent made its Return on Novembe;
24, 2015, requesting an evidentiary hearing be held. An evidentiary hearing into the matter was

' convened January 9, 2017, at the Charlestox} County Courthouse. Applicant was present at the
hearing and represented by James K. Falk, Esquirg Assistant Attorney General Alicia Olive
from the South Carolina Attorney General’s“Ofﬁce appeared on behalf of the State. At the
conclusion of the hearing, this Court denied the application from the bench: This order follows.

PROCEDURAL HISTORY

The records before this Court establish Applicant is presently confined in the South
Carolina Department of Corrections pursuant to orders of commitment of the Charleston Couﬁty
Clerk of Court. During its April 2013 term of couﬁ, the Charleston County Grand Jury indicted
Applicant for distribution of éocaine base (third offense) (2013-GS-10-1996). Donna K. Taylor,
Esquire, represented Applicant. Assistant Solicitor Kelley Young prosecuted the case.

On August 28, 2014, Applicant appeared in the Charleston County Court of General
Sessions before the Honorable Donald B. Hocker, circuit court judge, and pled guilty to the
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lesser-included offense of distribution of cocaine base (second offense) without negotiations or
recommendations. Judge Hocker sentenced Applicant to seven years iniprisonment. Applicant
did not appeal his guilty pleas or sentences.

FACTUAL HISTORY ADDUCCED AT THE GUILTY PLEA

These charges arise from an undercover drug transaction conducted by the City of
Charleston Police Department on: Decembe.r 1,2012. (Plea Tr. p. 5-6). During this transaction, an
undercover office in the area of Rutledge Avenue and Congress Street exchanged pre-recordedA
U.S. currency in exchange for approximately 0.2 grams of cocaine ‘base. (Plea Tr. p. 6). The
entire transaction was recorded. (Plea fr. p. 6).

At his plea proceeding, the plea court inquired as to whether Applicant agreed withv these
facts and Applicant stated he did. (Plea Tr. p. 6). Applicant stated he understood the court c;)uld
sentence him to up to thirty years imprisonment. (Plea Tr. p. 7). Applicant also stated he was
aware of his constitutional rights and wanted to waive them to enter his guilty plea. (Plea Tr. p.
7-9). Applicant stated he had not been threatened or promised anything to induce his guilty plea;
(Plea Tr. p. 5). He stated he was satisfied with his attorney’s services. (Plea Tr. p. 9-10).
Applicant also stated he understood he had ten days to appeal his guilty plea. (Plea Tr. p. 10).

| ALLEGATIONS RAISED |

In his application, Applicant alleged he is being held in custody unlawfully based on the

following allegations:

1. “PWID, 2™ offense is not a lesser included
offense of PWID, first offense”

a. “SC Code Ann. 44-53-375 (b)(2) is not
lesser included offense of 375(B)(1)
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2. “Violation of Notice requirement guaranteed by
U.8 & S.C. Const. & statutes”
a. “There is no indictment alleging a
violation of S.C. Code 44/53/375(b)(2)”
3. “Breach of the plea agreement”
a. “The offense in which Applicant pled
guilty is not a lesser included offense”

At the start of the evidentiary hearing, the State moved to dismiss these allegations a direct
appeal issues that cannot be raised in a post-conviction relief action. (PCR Tr. p. 3_—4). Applicant,
through counsel, responded Applicant would be proceeding fofward on the allegaﬁon plea
counsel was ineffective for failing to advise the plea court that the underlying indictment failed
to allege it was a second or third offense and the allegation Fhat counsel was ineffective for
failing to investigate whether Applicant’s prior drug offense should have been treated as one
offense for enhancement purposes. (PCR Tr. p. 4-5).
SUMMARY OF TESTIMONY PRESENTED AT THE EVIDENTIARY HEARING

At the evidentiary hearing, Applicant testified on his own behalf. Applicant testified he
was represented by a public defender on his onginal 2010 drug charges that were. used to
enhance this charge. (PCR Tr. p. 6). He testified he asked counsel why he had been indicted for a
third offense when he only had one prior drug offense. (PCR Tr. p. 7-8). Applicant testified
counsel advised him that because the 2010 ‘offenses occurred on two separate dates EJanuary 20,
2010 and January 22, 2010) they could be considered separate offenses. (PCR Tr. p. 9, 12-13).
He testified counsel did not explain why they could be consideréd separate offenses and he
repeatedly told her the new charges should not be considered a third offense. (PCR Tr. p. 9).

Applicant acknowledged these offenses happened on separate dates. (PCR Tr. p. 17). Applicant
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testified the State allowed him to plead to a lesser-included offenlse in exchange for his guilty
plea, but he does not think possession with intent to distribute cocaine base is a lesser-included
offénse of distribution of cocaine base. (PCR Tr. p. 10, 18-19). Applicant testified he only spoke
with counsel for 40-45 minutes throughout her entire représentation of him. (PCR Tr. p. 11). He
testified he knew he had prior drug‘ -convictions and understood he should be facing a second
offense for the charge subject to this application. (PCR Tr. p. 14). He acknowledged he
ultimately pled guilty to a second offense drug crime. (PCR Tr. p. 15).

He also testified the State failed to put him on notice that this was a second or third
offense because the indiciment did not provide this inforination. (PCR Tr. ‘p.10-11, 15-16).
However, Applicant testified he assumed it was a second offense based on his prior drug
convictions. (PCR Tr. p 16). Applicant acknowledged he also has a possession of cocaine
conviction from 2001. (PCR Tr. p. 16). Applicant acknowledged he did not raise any of the
issues concerning his indictments or the lesser-included offenses af his guilty plea proceeding,
(PCR Tr. p. 19-20). Applicant also testified he informed the plea court he was satisfied with
counsel’s representation. (PCR Tr. p. 20).

Plea counsel Donna K. Taylor (Counsel) testified next. She testified she became involved
in Applicant’s case when she was contacted by Applicant’s brother, a long term client of hers
who asked that she contact him. (I"CR Tr. p 21). She testiﬂed Applicant had previously been
represented by a public defender followed by a retained attorney. (PCR ~r. p. 21). Counsel
testified she met with Applicant and his wife on at least four different occasions. (PCR Tr. p. 25).
Counse] testified she reviewed Applicant’s prior reco;d, which included 2006 drug convictions
and 2010 drug convictions. (PCR Tr. p. 21-22). Counsel testified she also reviewed Applicant’s
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prior record with the prosecutor, who believed this current charge was a third offense based on
Applicant’s prior drug convictions. (PCR Tr. p. 22).

Counsel testified the offer had already been made while Applicant was reprfasented by
former counsel, (PCR Tr. p. 22-23). She testified when Applicant’s family contacted her because
they were displeased with Applicant’s current counsel, she made it very clear to Applicant and
his family that she was not going to take the case if Applicant wanted to proceed to trial. (PCR
Tr. p. 23). She elaborated: ' |

And I was clear with him and his wife and his brother that if he
wanted a trial, there was nothing I could do for him. This was an
undercover buy to a police officer. There’s audio. There’s an

informant tape. There’s video of the transaction. If he wanted to go
to trial, I was not going to ride that pony for him.

But if he wanted me to see if I could help get him a better offer,

and specifically get him into either drug court or mental realth

court, which was the primary goal, that I would do that and I

would be happy to then take the case, if he wanted me to try to do

that with the understanding that he would, one way or the other, be

entering a plea, because he never denied the transactions, any of

them.
(PCR Tr. p. 23). She elaborated there was overwhelming evidence of Applicant’s guilt and that
Applicant never wanted to go to trial. (PCR Tr. p. 26-27, 29). She testified Applicant is a veteran
with a history of mental health problems and drug abuse. (PCR Tr. p. 26). She testified she
wanted to get him into a treatment piogram, but he continued to use drugs and the State would
not agree to any mental health court or dnig court due to his non-compliance and that this case
involved a distribution. (PCR Tr. p. 26).

Counsel testified she never had to tell Applicant it was his third drug offense because he

was aware of it the first time they met. (PCR Tr. p. 23). She testified Applicant’s prior counsel
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had already reached an agreement with the State to allow Applicant to plead to a second offense
because of the tiny amount of crack cocaine that was involved in this case. (PCR Tr. p. 24). She
testified she explained to Applicant that the State was allowing him to plead to a second offense
as a lesser-included offense. (PCR Tr. p. 24). She testiﬁed she tried to get the State to reduce the
charge to possession, but the State refused. (PCR Tr. p. 28-29). She testified she explained this to
Applicant. (PCR Tr. p. 29).

Counsel testified she filed a motion to reconsider following Applicant’s guilty plea and
had a telephone conference with the plea court, but that he would not ;:hange or otherwise reduce
Applicant’s sentence. (PCR Tr. p. 27-28).

FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

This Court has had the opportunity to review the record in its entirety and has heard the
testimony at the post-conviction relief hearings. This Court has further had the opportunity to
observe the witnesses presented at the hearing, closely pass upon their credibility and weigh their
testimony accordingly. This Court finds Counsel’s testimony credible and finds Applicant’s
testimony not credible. Set forth below are the relevant findings of facts and conclusions of law
as required pursuant to S.C. Code Ann. §17-27-80 (1985).

Ineffective Assistance of Counsel
In a post-conviction relief action, an applicant has the burden of proving the allegations

in his or her application. Rule 71.1(e), SCRCP; Butler v. State, 286 S.C. 441, 334 S.E.2d 813

(1985). When an applicant alleges ineffective assistance of counsel as a ground for relief, he or
she must prove “counsel’s conduct so undermined the proper functioning of the adversaral
process that the trial cannot be relied upon as having produced a just result.” Strickland v.
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Washington, 466 U.S. 668 (1984); Butler, 286 S.C. 441, 334 S.E.2ci 813. The proper measure of
peﬁommce is whether an attorney provided representation within the range of competence
required in criminal cases. Courts presume counsel rendered adequate assistance and made all
significant decisions in the exercise of reasonable professional judgment. Butler, 286 S.C. 441,
334 S.E.2d 813. The applicant must overcome this presumption to receive relief, Cherryv. State,
300 S5.C. 115, 386 S.E.2d 624 (1989). Judicial scrutiny of counsel’s performance must be highly
deferential, as it is all too tempting for a defendant to second-guess counsel's assistance after
convi{:tion or adverse sentence, and it is all too easy for a cout, examining counsel’s defense
after it has proved unsuccessful, to conclude that a particular act or omission of ;:ounsel was

unreasonable. Strickland, 466 U.S. at 689.

Courts use a two-pronged test in evaluating allegations of ineffactive assistance of

counsel. First, the applicant must prove that counsel’s performance was deficient. Under this
prong, attommey performance is measured by its “reasonableness under professippal norms.”
Cherry, 300 S.C. at 117, 385 S.E.2d at 625 (citing Strickland). Second, counsel’s deficient
performance must have prejudiced the applicant such that “there is a reasonable probability that,
but for counsel’s unprofessional errors, the result of the proceeding would have been different.”
Cherry, 300 S.C. at 117-18, 386 S.E.2d at 625. With respect to guilty plea counsel, Applicant

must show that there is a reasonable probability that, but for counsel’s alleged errors, he would

not have pled guilty and would have insisted on -going to trial. Hill v. Lockhart, 474 U.S. 52

(1985).
After careful review of the entire record, including the testimony presented at the
evidentiary hearing, based on the standard discussed above, this Court finds Applicant has failed
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to carry his burden in this action in regards to his allegations of ineffective assistance of counsel
and that these allegations are ‘without merit. The Court finds plea counsel adequately conferred
with Applicant and members of his family, investigate his prior record to determine whether his
éurre_:nt charge was correctly enhancéd, and attempted numerous times to negotiate a plea
sentence that would allow Applicant to avoid prison. Ultimately, this Court finds plea counsel
was thoroughly competent in her representation of Applicant and in her advice to Applicant that
a guilty plea was in his best interest.

Applicant alleges plea counsel was ineffective for failing to advise the plea court that the

underlying indictment failed to establish this was a third drug offense. Applicant testified he was

_ unaware he was charged with an enhanced drug offense based on his prior record until he pled

guilty. However, counsel’s credible testimony rév.eals Applicant was aware this offense was a
third offense based on his two prior drug convictions from 2006 and 2010. This Court finds -
Applicant has failed to meet his burden as tb this allegation:

Additionally, Applicant aileges plea’ counsel was ineffective for failing to investigate
whether Applicant’s prior drug offenses should constitute one éffense for enhancement purposes
since they were close in time. In support of this allegation, Applicant testified his 2010 drugl
convictions stemmmed from conduct that was two days apart, and due to short time span, should
havé been considered one offense for enhancement purposes. However, this argument is without
merit, as it completely ignores Applicant’s other prior drug conviction from 2006. Counsel
testified she investigated Applicant’s prior record and the current offense qualified as a third

offense and that the prosecutor also believed it to be a third offense. Moreover, Counsel testified
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Applicant understood it was a third offense. This allegation must be denied and dismissed with
prejudice.

CONCLUSION

Based on all the foregoing, this Court finds and concludes Applicant has not established
anyA constitutional - violations ‘or deprivations that would require this Court to grant his
application. Therefore, this application for post-conviction relief must be deﬁed and dismissed
with prejudice.

This Court notes Applicant must file and serve a notice of appeal within thirty days from
the receipt of this Order by counsel of record to secure the appropriate appellate review, See

Rule 203, SCACR. Pursuant to Austin v. State, 305 S.C. 453 (1991), an applicant has a right to

an appellate counsel’s assistance in seeking review of the denial of post-conviction relief. Rule
71.1(g), SCRCP, provides if the applicant wishes to seek appellate review, post-conviction relief
counsel must serve and file a Notice of Appeal on the Applicant’s behalf, Applicant is directed to
South Carolina Appellate Court Rule 243 for appropriate procedures for appeal.

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED:

1. This application for post-conviction relief must be denied and
dismissed with prejudice; and

2, Applicant La’Quan Bryan shall remain in the custody of the State,

AND IT IS SO ORDERED this day of July, 2017.

[Signature Block Follows on Next Page]
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KFN20130100529
WITNESSES

Charleston City Police Department

AGENCY CASE NUMBER
11219314

ARREST WARRANT NUMBER

2013A1010900025

' DATE OF ARREST

January 23, 2013
ACTION OF GRAND JURY

Foreperson of Grand Jury AP0 TS
Date:

VERDICT

Foreperson of Petit Jury Date:
INDICT

DOCKET NO. 2013GS,1001996

The State of South Carolina
County of Charleston

COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS

‘April Term 2013

THE STATE

© V8.

SENIOR JENKINS
DOB: 1975
BM

Indictment for

Distribution of Cocaine Base
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) INDICTMENT

)
COUNTY OF CHARLESTON )

At a Court of General Sessions, convened on April 1, 2013 the Grand Jurors of Charleston County present
upon their oath: :

Distribution of Cocaine Base .

s

That in Charleston County, South Carolina, on or about December I, 2012, the Defendant, SENIOR JENKINS, did
manufacture, distribute, dispense, deliver, purchase; or did aid, abet, attempt, or conspire to mmufaémre, distribute,
dispense, deliver, or purchase; or did possess with the intent to distribute, dispense or deliver a controlled substance
or a controlled substance analogue; to wit: cocaine base; all in violation of 44-53-375 of the South Carolina Code of

Laws (1976) as amended.

Against the peace and dignity of the State, and contrary to the statute in such case made and provided.
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E’IATEJ,OF- SOUTH CAROLINA IN THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS

COUNTY OF Charleston ,
Sh‘ATE. ) VS. INDICTMENT/CASE#: 2013GS1001996

)
)
)
Senior Jenkin ; A/WE _2013A1010900025
AKA: )  DateofOffense: _12/1/2012
)
)
)
)
)

Race: BLACK Sex: M Age! 39 S.C.Code § ;_44-53-0375 (B)(1)

DOB: SS#: CDR Code #: 3014
Address: A Coma St

City,State,Zip: rth Charleston, SC 29405

DL#: _ﬂ‘_sm#z SC00865170

“CDL Yes[] No[ ] CMV Yes[[] No[] Hazmat Yes[] No[]
In disposition of the said indictment comes now the Defendant who was [J CONVICTED OF or XIPLEADS

TO: PWID/Dist/Mf Cocaine Base or Meth, 2nd Offense (5 - 30 years and/or not more than $50,000)

in violationof § 44-53-0375 (B) (2) of the 8.C. Code of Laws, beanng CDRCode# - 3015
X] NON-VIOLENT [7] VIOLENT [XJSERIOUS ((JMOST SERIOUS [[JMandatory GPS(CSC [1§17-25-45
‘w/minor Ist or Lewd Act) .
The cherge is: [ ] AsIndicted, [X]Lesser Included Offense, [[JDefendant Waives Presentment to Grand Jury. (defendant's initials)

The plea is: X} Without Negotiations or Recommendaﬂ'on, [J Negotiated Sentence, ) endatxon by the State.

ATTEST. A L00R3 Lo wlhanl 7 s

“~Young, Kélley N SC Baré  / l@‘sﬁdant Attémey for Defer{dant SC Bat#
WHEREFORE, the Defendant is commited tothe - m, State Department of Corrections, [] County Detention Center,

for a determinate term of ' z d "sln%ths@ or (] underthe Youthful Offender Act notto exceed - years
and/or to pay a fine of ; provided that upon the service of days/months/years and/or payment

of § ; plus costs and assessments as applicable*; the balance is suspended with probation for

SENTENCE SHEET

. months/years and subject to South Carolina Department of Probation, Parole and Pardon Services standard conditions of
probation, which are incorporated by reference. -
[J CONCURRENT or [[1 CONSECUTIVE to sentence on: : :
The Defendant is to be given credit for time served purguant to S.C. Cod § ,24-13-40 to be calculated and applied
by the State Department of Corrections. 2~ M
[ The Defendant is to be placed on the Central Registry of Child’Abuse and Neglect pursuant to S.C. Code §17-25-135.

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 922,it is unlawful for a person convicted of a violation of Section 16-25-20 or 16-25-65 (Criminal
Domestic Violence ) to ship,transport,possess,or receive a firearm or ammunition.

) SPECIAL CONDITIONS: . -
[IRESTITUTION: [] Deferred [T] Def. Waives Hearing [JOrdered pTUP
Total: § plus 20% fee: $ days/hours Public Service Employment
Payment Terms: 'Obtain GED 3 '
[J Setby SCDPPPS : Attend Voc. Rehab. or Job Corp.
— " May serve W/E begining
Recipient: Substance Abuse Counseling O
*Fine: ¢« . $ Random Drug/Alcohol testing O
§ 14-1-206 (Assessments 107.5 %) $ Fine may be pd. in equal, consecutive weekly/monthly
§ 14-1-211(A)(1) (Conv. Surcharge) s$100 $i160.80 ' pmts. of § beginning .
§14-1-211(A)2) (DUI Surcharge) $100 $ $ id . P d
§ 56-5-2995 (DUI Assessment) $12 3 — _ paidto Public Defender Fun
§ 56-1:286 (DUI Breath Test) 25 T3 Other: a0 e
Proviso 47.9 (Public Def/Prob) $500 3 JAE %S
§ 14-1-212 (Law Enforce. Funding) $25 $,5.00 £
§ 14-1-213 (Drug Court Surcharge) $150 s[4 1)
§ 50-21-114(BUI Breath Test Fee) $50 S ]
§ 56-5-2942(J) (Vehicle Assessment) $40fca § [ Appointed PD or appointed other counsel,
Proviso 90.5 (SCCJA Surcharge) $s $ 9.00 § 47.12 requires $500 be paid to Clerk
3%to County (if paid in installments) $ 6. 40 during probation,
$

TOTAL 298. 40 W
. A/w cal R@({'MV\ a Presiding Judge 77

Clerk of Court/ Deputy Clerk Jud . 21 G
ge Code: o7
Court-Reporter: SU\MHM \[/l? fA/ Sentence Date: X9
. V ~

SCCA/217 (03/2011)
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==  ARREST WARRANT

2013A10710900025

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

County/ D Munlicipality of *
Charleston
THE STATE
against A (benn >t

Senior Jenkins

Address:  [JfJKennedy st, Apt!

O-clyts 22Y65

STATE OF SOUTH CAROCLINA

E ‘County/ D Municlpality of
Charleston

Personally eppeared before me the affiant
being duly swam deposes and says that defendant Senior Jenkins
did within this county and siale on orabout 12/ 1/2012

State of South Carolina (or ordinanca of Countyl
In the faliowing particulars:

DESCRIPTION OF OFFENSE: Dnypg / Possession of less than one gram of meth or cocaine base,

) .
) AFFIDAVIT

Officer -Staton

I:l Municlpality of Charlesto

Chgrleston, SC29403- I furher otate that there Is probable cause 1o beleve that the dafendant named
Phone: 2817 SSN: the crime set forth and that probable cause is based on the [ollowing facls:
Sex: Race:. B Heght 5 11 Welght: 135 : '
oL St <l —_— See Attached Affidavit
DOB: 973 Agency ORI#: SC0100100 D
Prosecuting Agency:  Charleston City Police Department ’
Prosecuting Officar: ~ Officer Staton - 1693
Offanse: Drugs / Possession of less than one gram of meth
* of cocaine base, 1st oflense
Offenss Coda: | 3009 . CL 7
CDda!Ordlfmnce Sec:  44-53-0375 (A) Signature of Affant l‘ 3;2 f' )19:\
B warent 18 m e ] o
D County! D Munieipality of Ti:;:?um cﬁom&wmof ; AffiantsAddress 180 Lockwood Blvd.
. The accused X _ ) Charleston, SC 29403-
T& t6 ba amested and brought before me {0 be Charleston Affiants Telephone  (843)577-7434 °
desit with according to tha law.
{L.8) ARREST WARRANT .
" ‘Slgnalura of Judge ¢
Data: TO ANY LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICER OF THIS STATE OR MUNICIPALITY OR ANY CONSTABLE OF '
t appearing from the above affidavit that there are reas
RETURN . .
A copy of this aest wermnt was dolverad 1o on orabont 12/ 1/2012 defendant  Senior Jenkins
. 2y — - did violate the cdminal laws of the State of South Carolna (or ordinance of
::"“"““' Senivy  Sewlkiy K] Countyt  [] Muricpaltye!  Charleston : ) as sel

Ve EVATY:

RETURN WARRANT TO:
General Sessions
Charleston County Judicial Center! ::"«‘:, 5 5?%
100 Broad Street, Suite 106 ER L j
Charleston, SC 25401 =t

ORIGINAL ORIGINAL

~Bonnie Lee Koontz

ORIGINAL

DESCRIPTION OF OFFENSE: Drupgs / Possession of less than one gram of meth. or cocaine base,

Having found probable causa and tha above affiant having swom before me, you are empowered and directed fo 1
her before me forthwith to be dealt with accarding to law. A copy of thls Arrest Warrant shall ba dellvared to the de!
soon thereafier as Is practicable

Swom 1o and subacnibed before me

on 1/8/2013 )
12,

)

) Judge's Address 1720 Sam Rittenburg Blvi
) Charleston, SC 29417-18¢
)

)

Judge's Telephone  (843)766-653 1
ssulng Court: Maglstrate D
ORIGINAL

.Iudge Cods: 5627

ORIGINAL ’ ORIGINAL
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BAIL sat by WITNESSES I
T T YT e A

Typa andmpnr\ Jj{ a5 Telephone:

Name of Surety: \ Neme:

/ Addrese:

PRELIMINARY HEARING held by
Telephone:
Judge ’
Name:
on -~ Address: .
Defendant Aftomey: Telephone: -
Declslon: Namse:
Addraess:
oo Telephone:
. - o DISPOSITION before ]
) ag g Name:
Judge . o
B ﬁ 3 mgl: . Address;
on B .Y %—‘QG‘J .
LA L [og T Telephane:
by 1 b= “?E: \ )
ca % E: & al, blea, nol. pros., eic.). Nam.e:
e " l——e.‘ . .
Dlsposma!'»b---‘ : dey Address:
) =3 r ol
[— 3 @0
Sentence: e~ . Telephona:
JURORS Name:
Addrass:
Telephone:
Name:
Address:
Telaphane:

CODEFENDANTS




